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Group snapshot

Revenue

Revenue has increased by
over 82% in the last 5 years
from £390m in 2020 t©
E712m in 2022

Energy generation

Cur renewable energy
assets produce enough
energy to power over
a million UK nomes

Number of employees

We employ over 1,690
people

Carbon offsets

Our renewable energy sites’
carbon saving is over 822,600
carbon tonnes this vear

Number of loans

Over'the year we
provided financing to, on
average 182 borrowers
in the UK

Number of sites

We own 220 renewable
energy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK




Chief Executive's review

Crur Group was n a soiid position cofr‘ung cut

8}
=

the iockdowr response o Covid-19, and our

busress has contnued to perform ropustly
hroughout the year. This year N3s 20en sorme
tan divisions

srimaray dr ven by e increase in energy prices
S W E

unforecasted growtin value of ¢

Fern Tradimg Limute

with s sugsidiaries
growwtn for sharehclders over tre long term, wh a

focus on steady and predictab.e growts, th

aruculary important dunng reore challengirg
b 2 shas

econcrc conditions. We have a divers

mature busingess befitting a Group witr 7ore than
22 yaars of racing h story and ambiion. The Groug

comprses more tran 200 compan.es th

operated in arange

generating steady lorg-term growth for cu

=CIors OVEr many yoars

sharenolders We Qppratu in maunnai sectors tnat
wa axpect to perfo f.
volatility.

From this secure base wea have beor abe 1o add

incrernental exparsion and diversifcation ir a
rreasurec way drougn seelking out cpportunities in
new adjacert sectors. Those soctors prov-de us
with 2 platforrn to continue 10 expand o line with
cur existing strategy Today, our Group comorises
energy, properyy fer

fhre and rouss bui!.mr‘g dvsions. We na

ercing, heathcare infrastructure
YO Grow T

to be a signimcant presence with n our mos:t

established seciors, producng 4. 2% of tha UK
sclar energy and 17% of the U-<< omshore wind

ereargy cutcul and building 3 £261m snort and

rredidm term erdrg busiress that faciztates tne

ruct-on and imoroversent of homes

througho . the LK

Tre Cornoany's share once deliverea 10% growth

ower Te patl 12 montns, well anead of our arge

o A% growth per annur. T ne extracralnary growth
ic attrputable 1o our 2oergy civis on, Witk has
benehttes

energy pr e forecasts ana &

frorm

igreficant in

over the ger od, 'n add ton o infation.

ircrease in the vaiue of our en
uoocrted by said per'aticna
c growth in newsar

ergy divis Onowas
| performanrce across

L sechors anc some organ

n

We rermian a supnsrtive employer, with more than

1690 ful-time staff across the busnesses that we
own and cperae and imarrect employment
provided for huridreds more people througn

confracts that we have :n pace

A reflection on our year

Our busress raised £404m frorr imvesors this year
delivered consistent revendes while growine capiia
depoyrment, rezultir 3 £717m in revenue
generated acress the Groun (2021 £425m; ard net

20
asserc of £2,219m (2021 £1 888m restated)

The finarcial stetements for tre year show an
ax of E45 aganst our

opearating pro4t boefore
expeced oucome of g small accountrg piohn Trs
robust performance is a direct rasdl of ef‘.er;y
produdc

dunng tre year Almost 50% of Gur susmes

-~
Il
==
=

=
T
2]

d by tre groue being sold for high

w

cornonies rerewalbe energy gereralirg &ssets such

az solar anergy sites and wird farn s, wihch provids

ag-term reverue strearns Thgse are m'entorally
civersified acress a range of recrnoogies ¢ mitigate

agairst poor pc”orrﬁame i a specific sector and

contricute towards steady, precictable share once

crowth, Rowever, therr vanles can stll be imoacted

and dema~d We have se

by cnanges in pncng

consecutive and matenzl increases In ong term

rergy price ‘orecasts and energy forward rates
lopally over tne last 19 rrantts as the globsi

ecorcmy recovess from the Covd-19 panderic,
and seeks aternatve

n Ukrzaing. A

sources of erergy as z result o

the conflic

org witn rflation, thess

faciors nave materia, yongreazed g
=

Group's energy assets

Tor assets in these sectors have been balsteren this
yvear with tre scguisiion oF sites ir
s well ac Uz nNg DU experus

strgl roofop solar
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Chief Executive’s review

markets and starting corstruction on a large wing
farrn in Austral a. At the start of the year we added
nine gdditonal sites t¢ our reserve power division
wricn brings us up to 26 sites in total {compared
ter sites for most of 2021) Theze sites nave
performed ahiead of expeciatiors, generating

EBITDA of £26m (2021 £1imy) dusing the year

med biomass
ues 1o cerform well and haz
delivered stakle rerurns since acquisition in 2015
Thsyear | ha

Jur success rd well-establis

aivision comm

ve been particularly pleased (o see
strong performance at our newest b orass site n
Sretertan, East An g -a, which was acauirec in Apr:l
2021, proving o oe a valuabie add ton o re
Duning tne year we purchased a Wasie-
to-Energy facility curre

DLSINESS.
ritly under caonstruction n

Ayrshire. Tne “aciity has been in development “or
three years and wil be capable of processing over
185,600

nousencld, ©

tonnes per annum of non-recyclable
omimerclal and indastral waste whicr

would otherwise be sent o landhll ar exported

Th:s will generate 17 MWe of low carbon electrcity,
erough to power 30,000 Fomes It wili be the first
arge-sca.e, sdtsidy free waste-to-erergy oroject :n
western Scotland and projected cempletion dawe s

neary 2024

Over recent years, many cf our energy assets have

eern urder construct.on which nas contnbated to
our previously reported accounting losses. Thig iz
typ cal of such businesses during growth phase
even when cash generative, because finance ©os's
and accounting charges, such as depraciat:or,
exceeded revenues. This divisicn has now reached
CLr targer size and sector spiit

Accord mu this year | am pleased 1o report ar:

fit before tax of L48m against our
unting profit. Tnis sightly

ofitic gue to the maturity ©

accounting o
nudgetea small a
iarger trian expected or
the portfoiio and higher energy prices; resulting in
increased revenus frorm our eneargy divisicn as weil

as an ncrease in inflation {as explared nelow)

Sur property lending husiness makes up arcund
27% of the Group and comgrises shot and megium
loans wo experienced property

professionals Tnis establshed part of
erform weli, folowmng &

term zecured
our BusINess
short period
Covid-19 when we

continued to p
of slow down during
‘nientionally chose to wr te fewer loans Our average
0an book was 182 loans this year to UK sorrowe s,

Curlending division has a.ways operated at

conzervative ican 1o value levels (below 70%),
order that it maintains access o0 valuable secunty if
theare u a reducticn in property values This strategy

as sarved the Group weall since inception 12 vears

5

ago, and it has cperaed trough cericds of change

several times The Group s tak ng a nafurally
cautous approach when assessing new iencing
cpportunities in ight of tne charnging econamic
o.utook To date, the Group has ert £2 2bn ¢f
property loans since ‘nception in 2010, suffenng
only £E&m in capital losses, Ths strong track record
the result of cur careful approach in thus secior,
comprising dizciplined due dligerce, conservative
ioan-to-value ratios and an ability and widingniess to
reduce activity in thig sector during umes of
economic uncerainty. We will cortinue to adopt

this anproach tnroughout the coming year

The healthcare divis.on makes up around 4% of the
Group and 1s broacly performing weil Gur
retiremnent villages business, Rangeford Holdings
Limired "Rargeford”} contmued to sel apartmenis
mmerced construction of a fourtn
a aftn iocation

at three sites, ¢
villzage in Chertsey, and acquire
near Cambridge during the year Sales at the
Cherisey site are expected to commence in 2024,
whilie construciion at the Cambridge site 18
sxpectea to start in 2023 with the first sale
commencng in 2026

established in 2019 and
rermars an area of growth for the Group, now
corrprisng of six operating businesses Our
residential Gus’ nesses. Jurassic Fibre, Swish Fibre,

Qur fibre division was
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mgar“e anc Allpoinis Fiore dre building wiirafast

o the oremises” broadband Netwaorks in
CYIons of the UK whicr have been overloo<ed by

arger f)perat(w Giganer prowvides cornectivity to

homes and businesses across the UR usm CityFibre
and Openreach in‘rastruciure ana V. S s a software
development cormpany which nas deve lopeﬁ
praprietary software to aliow Internet Service
Providers to sell connectivity over wholesate enabled
networks. ncluding Alpoirts Fibre Yorposs s the

3 only dedicated enterprise Abre network o focus

on prcv:d.mg connectivity to busnesses ~ Landcn

Irt the year, odr residenual fibre busnesses
comunued toinvest capital in expancing their

newworks 0 tre qome Courties, the Souts and
of Enga-d, and are now on

Soutfawest ooarding

custamers to their networ«s, generating rec.rr ng

revenues far the Groun Qur state-of-the-art
networks are akle o meet customer demang “or
higher broadbard speeds reauired as a result of
more working-from-home ard ircreased usage of
video-or-dermand cervices. In London, Vorboss has
also continued to bund ana Fas installed over
500« of dbre wth a commritment to offer 105Gkps
f ﬂ""‘

fore to up to 15000 buuneszes in Centra.

oy 20727

Whirst our Sbre dwvisior rermaims i7 2 grovwth phase

for the next 3-5 years we do not exoect:t o report

an accouning oroft

Towards the erd of the year, we added &
property developer to the Group, with the acqu siticn

of Elwvia Homes ("Elvia™ “or £85m Elivia s ar

esizllished house tulcer developing rm.d -market

famiyy homes in Landon cormmuder owrs ard
villages Wrie Pis represenss a very smal cart of ¢
Group, we plar 1o grow it a measured way over
the rex: Ive years wiio an uwiimate target 1o aslver
E,JL ricmes per yvear, inciudng 200 higr gua ity

v a nas asrong existing

are Key 10 running e tus ness

Inflation and Interest rates
The hugner rate of infiatior expensnces tn's yaar

has been responsbie for some of the

outpericmMance aganrst 2ns in the
share price HM Treasury forecast that

hlg‘r‘ nflation s leely to be gresert until 20235, a3 &

expectar)

Company's

L we exsect to receive mrore revernLe for the

energy generated wittin our eriargy divizion, and a
ngher value from the government subsidies trat
some of our energy sites beneht rom, increasing

the value of those sites Howsever, a snort period of

h\ '"\ inf ation such as forecast has very [

roup € exoecied 1o grow

ontreraw atwaon the G

derve ther vaiLe

cashiflo

T over the time they are exgacio:
operate for, typ-ally 2
outlogk for lang-term irfation we e o

20 years or more

impact on our share price snould be oo

Ln
4 'L)

because twould irCrease e revenus each of [ols
J4id expect to meke, 1 convrast 1o A

cost base

¥pacied o be broad.y

our Group is intertionally struture
=}

ks ialetc sigﬂ-*“’mt VaLue

2xL

rates charnge We cortirue to ake

BLRroach with r odr Iendir:q busne
risrg inerest rates are feit rore closely, and we
have trne abui

Iy 0 recuce the rurcber of ias

ve write, or alter the -k profle of cur loans

trrough reduzig lcarn 1o Vaileg rat os of paLsing
achviy ncartan garts o the market soouig that

fee, acpropnate.
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Current trading and outlook

Since the year end, ine Group has continded to
cerferm steadily from an operat:onal perspective
ciations albelt we have
sean share price growth alead of target due o the

and n I re with cur expe

continued increase in long term energy prica
forecasts Our growth targets for the Group over
the medium and long term remain unchanged, ang

we contriue to focus on mantaining a diversifed
Husingss that is capatle of delvering maore
sredictable gromn for sharehclders,

Tne recertly annaunced Flectrcity Gerarator Levy
‘ECGL
Mpact on the returns generates fr

withir the 2023 Finance Bill, will have an
Crm Qur enargy

DOrSCI0 over the riext 5 years. This s furiher
discussad N the group fnance review on page 27

Ciar property lending business co~tnues o
oerform strongly, with increased deployment in this

sector since the year e~d. We focus on short term
0ans o average cdrrent loan term < 17 months;
wiich enables us to adapt W chargses n cuthicox

feel this s particularly ‘mportant in the

ic clmate.

swiftly, we

current econom

Performance in our haaithcare division continLes
10 be stabie and we contirue o remain positive
apout the opportunities to mpr
this secior

ove performanca in

Since year end, we have contriued 10 bule out cur
fibre retworks, with constiuction racking in line
with our expectations. We continue to reviewy
oprortunities for bhoth organ.c and morganic

tear

o

growth supporting our existing managearr et

In delvering ths sirategy

in December 2022 we have acguired the naghts t

f25m of nght o use moble licensss from Three
K, thus making tre first step wards becoming an

UK, th king t 93 it becorming

mobile virtual network ocerator.

< areas has develoned cver Ume
driven

Our mix of busires
and may evolve ass ahead,
by the ovararching importance we place on
re Thus

on of a whoelesale

further over the yea

meetng the objectives of cur sharehiotde
should not te read &s any indicatc
chiange in ine sec
reflection of the role olayea

ors 1IN whichn wa creraie, bhut as a
By the strategic
idate in prote

rnan cuing sharehclders’ rtarests

ur mix of business areas has

developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.

q¥




Our business at a glance

What we do

Fern Tracing Lrmirad (Fere") 3 the parent cormpany

< tcgetner the

Ve Key areas. energy,

('D

of nearly 320 subsician "Croupt Our
Group operates acrcss
heaitncare, lerdirg, bhre ard house bulding Over
the past tweive years we have built a carefully
diversifed group of operatng businesses that are
well poationed o delver long term value ana

predictalie growth for cur sharchoders

1. Energy division
We generae powel from sustairable sourc

s and
zell the energy produced ether direchy o mdusiag.

consumers or to large netwaorks. Many of cur
)

rerewable energy § qua'ly for government

Incentives, which represant an agducnat soorce of

rcome We nave slso uhiised our experase in
renewab.e ene gy Lo corstruct facilities for sale or

ongoing opersucn Abyear end the Group has
g b

w

ES LUNCer Lonsiruchon

1
i

A

2. Healthcare division

We orovice homes anda lesare facibues 1o our

ageing poouation, and prvate nosp'tals wruch

provide h.gh-gua. iy healtncare ¢
operatonal cites in the LY

STVCES glross

3. Lending division
We lend o

basis 10 a arge number of property pro

rioa snort and medium tenm

We also provide francing 1o enable S

$EeTs anc other

resdential and

i§]

[\

to Su

commercial propertes

4. Fibre division
Ve owrn and operate fibe broadband retworks
across vanous areas of the U We busld the

netwerks ard conne

them tc homes and
bus resses 10 ooy de oUr custamers watn uitralact

Fhre broadband

5. Home building division

Curing INo yoar, we SUcs e (e nouse

=ormes woich has a

Bld ng secior, acguinng Eivia
Srong :ra::k. recora of developirg homes inag
sustamnabic manrer The comoany ¢ a [Lll-service
progety developern, mearing b provides Servicas

from the aesigr, (o the engineerng and then fna’

= qkla‘lty

construction o ensure the desvery ©

WOorknansnip

Sotar, wind,

biomass, Property lending, Retareme:\nt Ultrafast fibre Residential House
fandfill gas deyelopment villages, _pr:vate broadband across building
’ financing hospitals the UK

reserve power

Cneratos

&

[Sallai- g [a1g
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Our business at a glance

The strength of our Group's sirategy s in both its
operationa: diversity and the return profie of tnese
ousinesses. Our lending business provides flexibility
and zirong returrs over the short term, while our
energy, healthicare, fibre ana home buiding
civisicns ofer visitility and stanility of returns over
the ionger term.

The zcae of our pusinegss i3 a key strength, erabing
us w0 acquire large-scale establ'shed operations as
well a5 the opportunily ta enter new sectars with
minir-al risk o the whole Grous by selecting

Sector split”

Wird 22%8 .

Solar 20%

Reserve power 6% ’ ;
Other 3% 7

B M Owning and operating assets 69%
BE Lending 31%

Fern's sector
atlocation

pusinesses with comprehensive business plans and
sirong managevent teams This ernacles us to
continue to diverzify our cusiness witkout
camprermssing on the quality of our operations,
Cver the past three years, we have successfully
entered the fibre broadband sector and we now
own six companies with exciang plans o deliver
ultrafast proadinand across the UK.

Healtncare 1%

- Froperty 27%

- Reserve power 2%
~—5olar 1%

~ - Fibre 5%
- Healthcare 4%

—Lanafilt gas ard biomass 9%

Sectar solitis givern by vaiue, as represented o the company ta.ance sheet of Fern Trading Limiiea
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Our business at a glance :

Where we operate

We zre proud thatl The busnesses

with n cur SGroup make a positive

contricution to society, from
e

ne-ating clean erergy 1o the /)\

Q
o)
&
=
7

ralthcare mfrastro.cidre, /‘\

Sclar sites
Lancfil gas fac. ues
Biorrass gower stations

®
®
g
%‘ Wind farme
[ Qs
e
(H]

W

As we've Grown oUr expertse in these sectors i the UL weve o

4]

=1l

e to use our indusiry know.edge to

o exclirg opporiunities overseas, Moudng construcung so.ar and wind farms




Our business at a glance

Making » difforence
Ve are proud to operae a Group that rmaxes a
powtwp conten

.Jr:f Nl g
arc !

LN I sociaty across the UK,
renewasle enargy, providing gually
nfrastructure and retirermernt living and
high-speed broaghand to undersarvead
arezas O the country.

Energy

We currently own 220 energy sites, praducing

2 7ECW a year, That's encugh energy to power over
a miliern homes

Our comgiratior 2f technologies <oiar
ard .anrdiig

er well, helping the U

reserve power, Diomass
[s)en

complernent each o
5 erergy tan

mest i gats rrrespactive of the weather

fie Fern Community Fund s a socsal emterprise rJn

oy the Grous, which works to cistribute community
funds generated from our wind farms 5 year, ne
Fern Cormurnity Fund has swarded £1.4m ic local
commur ty groups, supooried 13 lecal un wzrswt/
studerts through our Student Scho h io Fund,

and prowc:ed a 7(36 resicents

whe ae s o the

winter fuel subsidy (o

Group's assels

Healthcare

Cur retirement villages orovide hgh-guality,
contempaorary Lving spaces, with 379
accommodation urits currently ‘n place, and
schemes in vanous stages of deveicpment
over 500 adcitional accommocation units

cffering

A friendly community 1s at the heart of our

retirerrent vitllages, which 's why in our

developments we provide central facilites and a
nub of social activity for GJr residents

Lending

The loan: wa mrade during the year have hegped

fund the construction of student accommaodation
and much needec

a residential properties,

We continue to extend loans to 24 taxi drivers and

fleels (G enable tnem 10 use electne vahicies,

reducing ,orbom emIssions 1 our capital.

Fibre

Througr our fiore avision we are bulding out the
the LK. Four
of our management tears are focussed on

filbre optic Lroadoand network across

ks for
all t"usimesses, and a

buﬂomg out fibre optic broadband ne

esidential customers and sm
fifth 1= bullding a fibre network 1o deliver enterprise

ara develo

cannactiaty. Cur s xth 15 a sef
eCor amd

cempany oceratng ir the fiore

providing services to Oul group Companies.

Withir tris dvision we have glans 1o creale a
network orovicing connectivey o over one rnillen
propertas in the next three years many of which
ages tnat den't currentiy

nnechvty it for mooern

are in stnall taowns and vills
have access to internet ¢o

wayd of workung ard comrrunicating

Not onby are our Slre businesses bring:ng
connactivity to underserves communites, t‘mey are
also generating emplayment coportunities for
yourg mndividaals via training academies andg
apprenticeship scnemes, and are driving diversity in
Telecoms, with one of our cornpan.es having
taunched a number of initiatives to recruit women

It the secior

Home building

Our home building divisior uilises 2 high
proportion of susta.nable tmber frame construction
rmetnods and installs air source heat purigs in a.
propertes, leading the way i this sector and

helping reduce carbon ermissions




2 | STRATEGIC REPORT
Our strategy in focus

Energy
Through cur enercy division, the Group owns and
operates energy s ey whicn sugply gas a~d
elecinc t/ nto tne network, as well as constructing
ture zale Qf the 220
operate, 194 provide
renewable energy. conributing to the Group's
position as one

-

erawabe cnergy sites for fu

ergy sites that we own and

of the largest producers of

rer:ewabte energy frorn cormnmmeraal scale sclar sies
N the UK Energy sites are typically expected to
ger@ratm table profits ‘or mary years, as such

ses s atfractive
to the Grouo hecause of ther potental to daiiver

mwring ard operating these busires

predictab rrﬁt’ aver the lerg term,

Renowakle erergy sites generate power from

susta nabie s

Jrees and zell energy produced sither

dircctly to large industnel censumers or to the

networ<. Many of cur renewable energy sites alse

qualfy for government ince~tives, which resu s in a

portion of trie gererated energy bensiti~g from

rates that are locked in' for a

cpecified perod cnce
irg sie s o

a qualify
bezn g

nerational and accred-tation has
racted Ths Has recuced somre of tre miopact
of tre volatility in iong-term energy price forecasts
Ag new sites built in the UK do not aqualify for

historic

irterest in ths rmarket for s1es ke the ones we own

government INCent vas, wWa are See ng more

znd operate

Owning and operating energy sies is a core par. 0°
our strategy anc currertly rnakes up atmost 60% of

e GroLp's net gssets Th s part of cur Grown nas

Did you know?

generated h.gner returns this year thas expectec
oLe 1o market concilors but cruciatly it has the
potent al fo nrovide stable retums over the org-
tarm. This corr*bmﬂtlorw 5 orey Lo our strategy (o
balance rek &

ard return across the range of Group

acilnties to generate target returns for shareholders,

“Our energy sites generated over
3,750 GWh of power.”

Lue to the

ave asle to securs ‘ong-term Anancing from

hign-nualty energy sites we own, we

rma nsiream parks at compeitve rates to enhance

U retdrng, which ﬂeips us 0o deliver the leval of

returrs our sharenolders exped
Winile our renewable ene gy business started lfe ir

tre solar emercy sector, the Group has culh

cxpent I=13

rass otner adjacent rechno

incl.ding orenore wind, b.omass and andfilt gas,
supported by reserve cower piarts whan provide
backup power o the Nat'onal Grid The Group
erafore henehic fror diversification within this

pact of te busi Csince weaker conditions for

erergy produchon frore one technology often result
nosTroNger croducuon eisewirere Tre Groun alto
ga:ns significart oene’it from its scale i ths seclor
as our business 1§ sreac across over 227 sites,
vastly reducirg the risk te Groups proftatility if ane
site suffers an oosrational cieruption

if laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from

London to Mexico City.
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Our strategy in focus

i adarion to our JK sies, the Groun s deve.aning Sirce returning to normal working patierns we have

sites overseas, n Junsdicions that we understand seert an ncrease in the number of aatients paying
weil These present an attrachive onporturity as they

build on cur sector éxpertise in countrnes at an

for ther own treatment as they face lorg walting
tsts for NHS treatment Despite the Iiting of
wedespread restrictions across the UK Cowid-19
continues ¢ affect the acute care sector with &
stressec NHS and increased infection contrs

earlier stage of renewale develooment Curfeﬂtty
we operate wind farms inirelana and -rance ard

sclar sites in France and Australia We have several
wind sites under construction in Poland, France measures that reman in p.ace.

and Australiz .
and Australia Lending

Lending continues o be a core part of our pusNess
and has provided the Group with & grofitacle and

Curing e year we accuired nine reserve power
plane and one energy from waste siie. Following

construction. we sold twao wind farers in Finiand and cash generatve sector over the past tweive yaars

snortly atter the year end we alsa sold Carington This weli-established part of cur Group mam!y

Point, 2 w@arge sowar 33 In Australia conzists of property ending, wihch provde
Healthcare short-term ﬁ'wm'“mr‘ to expmmced D*ofessn onal
oroperty develapers, buy-te-let ianclords seeking

Trrough our healthcare division, tne Group ‘ ‘
bricgirg firance, and development fnancirg,

operaes in the private medical and retiremearnt lving i
wiich provides short and medium term financing

seciors. OLr retirament ving business, Rangeford,

Lo companes
owns and operates twao ratirement villages in

A key benefit of the scale of cur Group and of the
business tha: we have buit ug in ths secior 1 our

ability to mitigate risk through having a large

Wilishire ard North Yorkshire and 15 currently
developing three furiher sites for future operations.

Our pr\vdte rmedical business, One HMeaithcare owns ‘
and operates two private "Gspitals 1 Kent and nuirber of snort ard medium term leans spread
;j l\ L) . . . . . .
hertfordsnire. prowdmg the very best level of care across small projects to individual torrowers We
i NN LA be} = * [ = = . i

proactively manage countarparty nisks throwgh

in modern, well egupped nospitad facilities.
undertalkeng careful borrower gue diligence, taking

“Lending continues to be a |
important part of our
business and has provided
the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years.
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Our strategy in focus

=curity over assets ypically on a first charge
¥ at ¥

basis

nservanve [Gan-to-value ratios.

<))

nd mantanng <o

-

it al ioans will perform as expected and these

measures help o mim'mise the impact of
oan. ths s

o thirough ne value that we lend W

performarcs issues on an individua:

further mitgate

irdredual borrowers, reat ve 1o our total lcan cook,

which 1§ currently spread 01 aversge across 182
loans, witih ar average ncividua oar ¢ £2 3m
Fibre division

Our finre divsaon mcludes five operatonal

companies buildirg fibre networks v the UK and

one software developmrent company.

Trrougn our residental Flore busiresses. we are

bulld ng new ofysica: fibre networks for

commurites in the UK anc se far have built out

hkre infras

struciure inwnderserved parts of Davon,

Buiding theze arge networ<s nvolves connecting
large datacentres and elephone excranges .n the
UK with homes and busiresses, effective'y
reolacing the o 1at

haf of the 20th

Tiganet are vertical!

poer wies [nal were

rtury Jurassic, Swish and

Yy mtegraied, as they both own
- arad
3¢ the interner service

the fiore infrastruciure 330 riave tre erg

custamer relatonshis

i in tre Arct

crovigder or 1S3 Alipoints owns fiore infrastructure

=N owil onooard oiher 'S7s o the Allpoints netwark
W

to se'l cornectvity to the erd custareer.
i Through Voross, we are buldng a network :n

{
\

Lonaon to suphy bus-ness-to-business ["B2E7

enterprise Conv’uectm._y direct 10 busress
Sk

esni London since 2020 and

customiers Vorbess has installed over 50
fibe optic cab nas
recetly laurched a single L0Goos product ta

rrarket, recognis.ng thast ambitious Lordon

busirasses will guicky recuire more than the 1Gkbps

oconnecuvity trey've reliec on o date

We have ceen rapid growth nour fibre dvision

duasion o continue

¢ 2018 and wea cxpect s
5 become

Tre Gr\JJV expe
capita: by 20250
more corrmuniz es 1 need of ultrafast creadband

er time
ately clbn of

3 larger part of our busness ov

LS
fLIRL its buid plans and reacr

sperd anprox

Home building
Cur new hormme oullding cusness, Elivia is 2 full

service nousebd loern azauinng land, develos ng the

iosite, and suoseguerty sell He horres 1o

 Trese sitez nclude a mix of coer
s and s
Fames Tre Gus ress s

ind vidua. Duyers

markel g0 al

‘ordable house trive 1o ¢

n:gh guality aspralona:

growing fast with projected annuat wrrover of
00 ha

wthin the rext 2 2 years

E250m ard 6 es pult per year forecastad
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Dirgctors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsibte for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
business activities to sharenclders. They have a set of complementary
comrnercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills.

Paud Latham ©
Pzui is Crief Executive of Fern and is responsitle for the day-to-day running of the
business He is also a managing director of Octopus Investments Lerited (OI7,
where he nas worked singe 2005 Ol s a key suppiier of resource and experuse

10 Fern Pauts dual role ensures that this relationstip works effectively and in the
best rierasts of Fern's sharenolders. Pau. has had varicus genera rnanagement
and internal consaliing roles acress a number of sectors and onngs with iim

a weszltn of :industry and h,cmesa experiance

e Helth Willey o ol Love Ua o
&

Keith s am associate professor of strategy and entreprencurship at London
Business Schoo. He alto holds varous nor-executive direciorships and adv.sory
roles at hign growth and more matdre companries. In his role as non-executive
chairman ne is rezponsible for the effecuve operation of tne Board, as well
as its governance He brings to the Fern business independant commercial
experience gamned frem hs time 'noacademia, private ecuity invesiment,
consulting and vanous hands-on operatioral roles

Pater Barlow o -0 00 ooy
Pater nas over 30 years experience in international financirg of irfrasiructare and energy
As 3 senior executive for nternaticral Power, Peter was responsible for arrarging over
$12bn of project and corporate funding, as well a3 banking relationships and freasury
activities. He has spent over 20 years working internationally for HEBC, Bark of
America and Nomura, financing acqu:sitions and greenheld projectf ir the erergy
and irfrastructure sectors. His comuorat'on of Board-level financirg and energy
exgerience over numercus energy sub-secters, and hes all-round krowledge Gf
all the sectors in which Fern crerates, adds significant veiug Lo the operatior. of
the Board as well as its strategy forrmation ard degloyment.

Tiews Arthur o el s Doeins

Tim 15 a chartered accountant with more than 25 years’ intermationa experierce
as a finance director of both punlic and private companies initially he worked
for Price Waterhouse in Birmingham and Chicago. More recently he was Chie’
Financial Officer of Lighticurce Renewable Eneray Ltd, a giobal ‘eader in the
furdirg, developmenrt and long-term oneration of solar phetovollaic projects

Tim brings extensive financia! and accountancy knowledge to the Board as
wel: as an undersianding of dynamic techno.ogy businesses gained from his

execulive pos.tions
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Principal risks and uncertainties

13

rincioal risks

ment ident.ty. 235288 and managa rnisks

associates with the Groug's business ohjectives and
strateyy. Risks anse from externat sources, thase

i the rmar<et,

andg from
systems and proceszes employed wihin the
bluzness Gverall ris< exposare s maraged acress
the Groug throug~ the diversifica
betn by sector and geography.

ion of activities

Rlsk Mltlgatlons

Ferare TV es Steterians S Mowiel. 0¥ stean. ST

Market rlsk -
The energy SeClor 1§ exparencing

& ns< nat forecastievels of Incorme
are not achreved due o cnarges
wholesale energy prices, off-take

N siace

CuLe ¢ this wrbulent envirormeant,
tne octental for 1mer
interventicn Ly the reculator 5 aso
arigh.

Elazro

Cnanges n Govermmient pohly
may resull nreduced roome
cresns within the grown due to
addincnal levies

Operational risk: .
Leves of erergy produced may

sLb-optiriaiweamer condit ons
Or performance ssuas with asse
equisrment, which may result 10

sigr.ccant urplanned dowrntrre

Financial risk' . M

"
Fisever"uﬂ from energy aste
1l or sale proceeds oVET
from the tals of sites) gengrated
ites arg lower than
sctuaticrns n

Constructmn r|sk . Th— Gro

Coneir.cthon of the sites {axes whigre qopronrale 1o reduce exarsare WO

Wonger or 5 More Costy tha
ant.oipated dle 1o resource
ava.atitty or increzsen cost of

LR L e

porucr of the ene

Energy Dwision

Cantracts gre enterad 1o whech fix the incom
ay ger eraied bv G SRS
sigrificant turbulerce and therg s « Long-tenm governmens: backed off
sch as the
SO soheme 30% of our energy income was
gererated from ROC
coNTacis o governrment subsidies « e engage with the qcver'ﬂmerﬂt and the Offce of
y Markets (70
“ased with policy makers wh

ouD enes wwed o

f s tnat the Group are exposed to

re described beiow, along witn the myuganng
actons we take to reauce the potentizl irmpact of
include our azseszmert of whielner
tre i <emqod Fibe rsk has increased, decreased

or remaned the same,

agreements are
Renewable Ocuca ior Cerufication

rEVENLIe.

Zas andd
e o an :rdustr ¥ VOICE
2rYIerE

o) G

wriprediclabsity of tng we aﬂ”@r 15 mitigated throagh
dwersifizatior of lechralo
G lower than antiiDatec dueg to v Reguiar sericing of assets s urce
are kepiin good o«

=5 a3nd location of sikes,

rtaren to ensure assats b
s

ondit.on and manirise the rek tha:
15 are yravailakle ‘or a .onger penod

Mo cnange

zyement ensures only 3 small poction ¢f the Growo's

erxgected t

be derves from %\

moressed idue
ovclaie FX

MoVETENtT)

108 CONIratis witn Contracors
rcreas.ro Costs =
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Risk Mitigations

N S S S R T TR PR
R R e e Fr— Hodvn b )

Managernert reguiarly reviews the comoetitive landscape

Market risk' .
tupected sales from custormears

are lower than anticgated due to
ncreased compett on from oiner .

providers.

A changein polifv fiy e
requlators in favour of larger
operaters could impact our anii
10 aeliver pianned developrens,
reducrg revenues and eficienciés

gained frorn B 1arger presence in a
parf-m\ar ared

Constructuon risk: .

Corstruction Of tne netwaork

takes lerger or S more costly

than ammpdteu due to resodrce
avaiabiity or ncreased cost of

rasa ma

-

werials.

Operational risk: .
Network servize s nterrupted or
unrelaile leading to patertial loss

of custorners and reputationat
darnage

‘s EAEEE 4
b5 fhit o »wshmg E ]
T IasiiEee bl T .
s (ieh
sy = B i
"“ N © w&m&l;i};jzs
£
¢

tefhmﬁjl equ Dm“”l with icng ‘ec,-r‘ *:fﬂm-

Fibre mvs,sjsnii iii i

B mE e g

in target build areas (o ersure p'\aﬂs <o nat canflictwith
otner allernaive neiwork Oparaers.

Mariagerent engages Drc-act\ve‘v with the Office of

Communicaions and the Government ta ensare the

benefits of srraller operators are weil incarstood and it

Interests are approprately represented.

We are an active partcipant in relevant industry nodes

particulary I ose represerting altemative network

OOETAOrS.

The C roup had contracted with 2 number of dl"‘{,rﬂ’t
suzplers to reduce the exposure ta any ore indivitual
entity. Selection of ouisource partners s managed
throughn a detalled procurement process wth long erm
wisinlity of work aliow!irg partrers to plan inancial and
people resources accordingly.

Wrere suppty chain problems are exoected for cntic
items our teazms generally have 6 months stock of ﬁore.
duct and other materia.s on hand, and advance ordear

Cur networks are built .n 2 resihent way W’lth d\ve-r e
route cotiors should 3 farure ocour i one route
This, comoined with an ability to rdentify and resoive

correctivity ssues quickly, menimises downtime of the
networis.

i
i Hii Sl i,

w.wﬁin—un s 3 13 St «kiwé‘ PrRRRdlynu.
$he Ptiert st et E e G A
i 1 i e N e
Y i HeauisinratyeniSiE IR ER AN ALY
1% wus.m. S
5% PR
o

S e

- nereased
[due to more

COoOMpeliors in
the marxet]

Increased {due
to wfre:mmg
demand for
resource N
the sector as

alternative
network
providers scale
paldh

fos
MNo change
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Market risk:

Icreas rg rflation and interest
rales eac W & market-wige
atardaiilty scue, resuting ik a

drop in proserty v - 5

sectors of real estate. This may

mpact our abii'ty W recover 4

war e ‘ull through a refrance

or sale

Counterparty nsk

Loans may be ™ade 1o unsutable

Fou“w*eruorr' 5, imzacting our
DIl ty to recover thie loan baianre

i fotl

Market rrsk (Healthcare and
Home Building):

A fal o house pnices coutld
TNoECt DU Aty 10 gensrale
erpected revenue from the sa e
of azartments i oLr retirermant

village

Construction risk (Healthcare
and Home Building):
CoNsTruct on takes icngear or

S raore Costy tnar anric rﬁtm
due w0 resource avanabhty .

creasen costof aw M e—'LJS

Health and Safety risk
(Healthcare)

dry G
f“u*
viriportarces
artarm=ga
ation as

ATEGIC REP

[

Mltlgatlons

. T"N{, hﬂar = Yy marnage our positonin
rmarketpace and are prepared to 2nforce whers nee
a loar: moves intc default

o Owrioans are made at conservative loar -io-vaiue LTV}
ratios witr a max mum LMY of 70%

ro-active

@
o
[§e]
(@R

3 Lrderlying security,
; rc-p,rf,/ or other gssets of the
.},/ on a firs: f“]a"qﬁ Dasis 1o

BCUON De rigsde
« Tharguon due diigence is perio

oy &d PGy TG wr ting
Ioaris‘ luding property o larg vaiuaions and oredit
rhiecks core an horowers.
- W‘me te (2ars are whnlion for asseis under comstruchon,
o are outim slace o ensure

irgf urfkﬂr drawoowns

 Healthcare/Home Building Divisions

Mitlgatnons

. Ha*mmg COMSErts o urdevelase: G ile;
MAXITSe rovenLes aad reduce the rnsk of 1osses on sae

o The Gra\.p, eners ﬁyed price contracts where approoriate
1O reduce exDosure to INCreasing mater al costs

o The Grodp orly wWorks with reputab.e 3rd parses witn a
strons track record of dE\‘v’EN!’:g‘ sivil'ar orojects

sard procedures
v.CeT We reveew inis
gl *:s‘oefr‘or‘s a%‘ are

<

e Tre Group mMam@ns oLl oole
relaung to tne orovieion of ™en

threugn conduct ng reguwlarin
abDject W extarral Inspec

D bas nsurance 0!
rancial iosses due o med:wal maorac

C I cover
-~

R
S

No change

increased due

1o unstan.e
Henigivlegllu
Cimaie!

WS
o
Ne change
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Risk
Market rlsk

Anincrease N base raes may
INcrease costs on debt & s
irmpacnrg the Group's abity to
service debt as if falls due

e <y ¥ R CL e ATE g Ry AR g T T

acil

Liquidity risk:

Pocr maragement of cash w thin

tne Group could .mpact the

Grour ablithy to rmeer obdgations
falld

as they due,

Health and Safety rlsk

The safely of cuar emp.oyees

and those employed throlugn
corntracts are of paramcurt
Impartanca. Theare 13 a risk that
acciderits in the workptace co.uld
result ir serous :"IJJI'" or de ath

Cyber Securlty risk:

An attack on cur [T systerns and
data could lead to disrupticn

of our eperatons and loss of
customer data. Loss or misuse
of data may resuliinreputatona:
damage, requlstory achon under
GDPR ard potent al fines,

C REPORT

Mitigations

S fonitrnnts bl e SISt Ry s e

« Where floatirg rate dwn s ir pldce fwhere interest varnes
I e with ar enderlying senchimark ratel, the Group
erters into hedging arrangements (o fix 3 portion of these
payraents inrcughout tne term of the faciity. Heoging
arrangements are cutlired in Note 21 of the financizl
staterrents

nicreased
(due tarsein
interest rates,

+ Aqelailed cash f;ow oracast s prepared and reviewed
by management on & monthiy basis, mcorporaing cash
avallabulity and cash requirements across the Croup Onat
least a gquarterly basis this 15 shared witn the Board

« The Group moritars bank covenants on an ongcing basis
o ensure continued adrerence to covenants vmere
covenants can't be met, forecasis are updated for th e
lower cash avarlab.e as 3 result OF the restictinn.

« The Group bas a flexibie firance faniiity which can be
drawn o at short notice (o meelimmediale DLIMess

needs.

Mo change

”

. \Nw ha\:e devﬂ oped robust bealts and safety policies in
compiiance with 15045060 =3 the Group to ersure
the we |-being of our staff

« Hea'th and safety training = provided to our staf and
contractors on a reguiar Dasis.

INncreased

2oy
(N LN

. ‘me empicy a Chief mfmrnjrmn Sr:cumt ¢ Otficer (7
wh o g responsble for data secanty across the Group and
repors quarterly to the Board, )

o The CISO works closely with our pusinesses tc ensure e
adequate standards of security ang infermation No change
managemen: are met.

« tach of cur businesses that hold customer data has their
Wi d@d.cafﬂc rescurce fcr T aﬂd c((,umy

PS Latham
Director
16 December 2022
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Corporate governance

Section 472 1] stutement
ard congider that they Nave adnersd 1o thie
requ‘.remems of section 172 of the Companies Act
the ’ n

and have, in good faith, acred

asa who;e [hav;, a rﬂqarr* 1o all staxero de”s and

matiers set out in section 172{
irn the decisions

in the perfeormance of e

Fihe Grou

duty o promate the

. the Board has regara 6
cloaing the axely

ions in the tong wrm, and
oup's key stakeno. J

te bu{id trust fmd ensure (it Ay understands the
Sf the decisions it m

potental impacs © akes Tne

Soard “Wifils thece detias partdy by deiegation to

committeas and the boards of subsidary
umﬁertakmgs, who operate witrin a corgorate

governance iamewaork across the Greup

p=S

At every Boarg megting & review oF health ard

Ty acro:s tne group. fnanciat and opseratora.

erformance, as well as legal a-d requlatory

safe

]

cornpiiance, is underaxke. The Board a
ather aregs over the course of the Anandia. year

including tne Group's business strategy, my rsks.

L

stakehoder-related matters, divers}ty and InciLz vity,

sibilty, and

ervironmartal matters, corporate re

governance, cormpliance and izgal matters

Principal decisions
We defne ponoipa. decisions taken b

restnataz ofa thaiegr_r'

<
o
Fr
a
A
m
_¥
&
~
M
<

cant e ary of our key

card goncicer tnat e followng are
Il

o
nenal detis ore 't radein the year

Grodp acqued a (argp sCae,

wind sits in Austral a Ths degloymert aigns

ready 1 CCTSUUCT

with the Groug's Straw‘egy o coninue o
develop "enewaole energy sites wh'ch grovide
enue strears The
Board conadered the o;::ooriumtv anc now it
augned with our okjec a poytve
contnbunon o the comaurity ana environment

VES TG M

Trne Group decden i exgand Nt Our Newest

division, house baidng. n May 2022 tre Group

acqured Elvia nomes, a full-service property

developer. providing services frorn the gesigr,

(F

1o the eng necarg and tren fral corstruchon

to ensure e delivery of quality waorkmanship

Civersifying the Growup's & ard entering

[ pase

ImiG s new Secior has beer wel ¢ cught
he Bosrd

ortamties within the

Gut witn lomg ter growth n ming. T

ed the srrateci opp

‘ore geciding o miove ahead with this

Cqli sition, considenng how s woyld imoact

3
exisiing bus.nesas within the gvs.or ana now
T augned witn the CHJuF, 3 SUalEgIc obiechives 1o
ceiver long-torm valuc ana predictanle growtn

for our sharerolders

Reviewing and deciding o move

T Q!
S
T
5 -
[STR
=
]

/

nlreasing Biomass O operat.ons w

cLr renewaltle

S CIVISCh. N Qc’.’;oe* 20?1 thie

I

Greup acguired a large

constrycion sté in ‘;cof{a-wd, Tris de;;toymemi

2ame, anc orovide reslignce againgt

‘e ororg cnarges mthe L energy
2 oproTtunity
30

red web cur cojectives t

h:: 2oard consicerea ©

stve conmbLucn 0 the comrunity
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Corporate governance

« Tre poard decided to change audit finmrs via a
tender process fo.r the year ended 30 June 2022
Tre Group had changed significanily since the

previcus auditcrs were appomted and therefo
we wers unable 1o reliacly assess tne vallie for
oney we recevec [hree Frms underwent,
the tenaer process and £rrst & Young

ause of their strong commercial

LLP were
se'ecied bec
s, efficient audit

uncerstanding of our busmes

methodc.ogy and value for maoney.

Business strategy

Our business strategy s set out on pages 11 to 14 of
the Strategic Report. Management prepares a

[N

etallea Greup budget which s approved by the

Board on an annual nasis and forrs tne basis for

re Group's resource pla ning and dep.oyrnent

-~

decisions. 'n making decizions
card has regara first anc

concerirg the
businezs glan, the 8
forerrost o 1S strateqic focus, but alse to other
matters such as the interests of its various
stakenclders and the ong-term: impact of its

actions on the Groug's fulure and reputation.

Shareholders

Snareholaer relations and generating sharehaoloer
value 15 a key consiceration when the Board is

making strategic decsions, The prirme meadium by
Group ¢

is thraugh tne annual report and financial

which tha TiMunicates with sharehoiders
statements, which am to provide sharenoiders with

z full understanding of the C;rf‘uU s actvities and s
results Tnis information 1s puplished on our website

at www ferntrading.com

Employees
The Grouo's employses are fundarnental o the
s, The Directors fulhi

overall success of tre tusin
2% by entrusing oversight 1o

their duty o employe
subzidary Boards which e
sits on

Chef Executive of the
Group atso
The airectors of the subsid-ary undertakings

manage the day to day decision making,
engagement and cornmunications with employees

and ensure tha: pecpie are treated fairly ard are
valued with respect to pay, benefit anc condiions.
We fuily realse that our empioyees wish (o be
informed and cons.lted on matters affecting their
to be invo.ved In problem-solving
affecting the of interest and

work and
iIrown areas
responsbisty The Groupas irmiy commitied ©

fall levels and we
am to establish a starithy
encourages tne open flow of informatio™ and
ideas. Presently this includes monthy team briefings

policy of good communicatiorn at
limate which cor

at z local level and the puclcation of monthly key

perforrance indicatars covaring ocutput, aperating

costs, and health and safety

arety of our employees in the

workptace s a continual focus for the Group, given

its broad operational busmess, The Jirectors review
Hezlth & Safety Report:ng at each board meeting to
ensJre zporopnate policies and procedures are in
place to protect tre heaith and safety of our
employees ard contractors Where trere are

potential deficiencies o 1ssues, these are folcwed
up and resolved on z tmely bas-<, with the Board
hav g oversight of the acuons taken

The Groun

of certain operaticona

outsources acivities and rmanagement

{acivities o external suppliars
atsourced the Board ensures
by reputable supphers who

try and regulatory

Where activities are o

that tney are rmanaged
meet ali the relevant irdus
l a3 treatirg employees fairly.

e dacurmernted ir ali service

commitments as we
Expected Stamdards are
ts and adherence to triese are conunually
gh therr service

contrac
monitored by Board throu

agrearment with Ociopus Irvesirments Limited.

Suppliers and customers

The Grouo acts in a fair manner with all suppliers
and customers and seeks to mantain strong
business relationships with them. This s achigved
by all contracts beng negotiated through a farr and
transparert ender process which ncudes

assessing the impact on the long -term objectives of

£3

i
H
3
i




7
I

3| COVERNANCE

Corporate governance

e Group. We review Cur payment orocessing
trnes agalnst contracts every six months (© ersure
suonliers are pad promptly and this information for

ine company is avalable on

£l

the www.gov.uk

The Groug ensuras L acts farly and i a transparent
ronanner to all customers acrest sl divisions and

services, and actively engages o resclve dary disptiies
or defadls. The Board closely moritors customer

metrics and endstes wi ith the management tearr 1o

anderstand tne issues if by

ROl Mea!. ¢l

Ehie]

ormners eXPeC

The Board
tbeak SRARTATaTI=IaTS
=i olntals \bm’.y for tre nrowsion of operabonal

£, firanc al adrriustration and company

oversigh
secretarial services,
Community and environment

e Do
mfrastr:):ture is at the cenire of the Croup's

ov.sion and operation of susiainadie

actyvites the

c goals

Th-*ok,-gh its busine

Group secks to ma<e a positive cortrbution (o the
COMIrUnIty, eny ronmrent and econormy Cur

remewable anergy Dusiness s hielping the UK rmest

s renewable

ena-gy tergets, oUr private nosy ta

ve suoported the NHS throughout tne Cov d719
SNGEMIC by providing sreatment for non-Coid-19
NHS patients that omnenw.se colld nat have neer
carried cut, and cur fbr

D

—

Qr

o
(T‘

el

{'}

& NEIWC < Wil Qe Ceop.e

In rural communities aceess to hign-speed
broadband

Business conduct

AS Diraciors our Nienior Lengye rasoorsivy,

e huzimest win

e by ;h sIaraards

of conduct a-d g:v“frar“fe U,<DP:ﬁcd of g busiress

str*ateg;' foutined on prgei 1Lt ]’ diis to opC’o = ir

Business ethics and governance
The Beard 12 resconsible for ensuhing that the

activities &° the Group and 1S various businesses are
cordutted nocompance with the law and
applicat.e governance ard regu.atory regirmes, and
i adharence wth prevalirg best pract.ce for the
elavant meuSt'y Triz nciudes revieswing niermal
cortrois, ensur rg that there is an apgronnate

t

palarce of ski'is and ¢ =4 onihe
Beard, and o

tve 2 true and far v 2w of the state of affairs of the
9

enerce Tepres

suring that e firancal st
Group Furtres detal car be found n the tatenent
of arectors responybitties on page 279 N the year
to 30 June 2022 no

flagged 't

n

areas Of concern nave been

s "P"*ufO

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

Tre 2oard's schicy on emnpoyee, haman [gnes,
SOCIA. 3t COMMUnITy 155U2S, enyTorrmant Ootw
ara anti-corrueion and oroery matiers . SIscuss

i mme Dnrecrors Regport or page 25 The Bead

actvely promoes a corporate culiure thats basad

on ethical values and behaviours
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Group finance review

Review of financial statements

The purpose of this report is to provide additioral
explanatory information on the fnancial statements
[n measurng ouwr parformance, the finand ai
measiures that we Lse incluge thoze that have been
derved from our reparteq results in order to
eliminate factors that distor: year-cn-year
comparisons. Thase are considered non-GAAPR
[inarcia: rneasures,

A reconciiaion of these (G the financia: resuits can
be fourd in note 28 of the nctes tc the francia
staterments :

The financ ai statoments shiow aszets at oost, as such
they do nct reflect the future value tnat we expect ' 3
derve from these busineszes To that extent :
accounting perfarmance may differ materially frem

tne share orice and may not reflect changes ir the
full marxet vawue of assets or bBusinesses owned by

the Group

A narmiber of acguis nons were made danng the
year inciudmg nine operaticnal reserve power stes,
a waste O energy site uncer Consiruciion, a
Constuctiog rzady wind farmin Australia anc
seventeen soiar rooftop stes under constructicn,
Shartly after the year end, 'n July 2022, we sold
Dartington Pont, a large solar site n Austraua

To supoort contnuad exgansion, we nad pult up
cash reserves at year end of £256rm wh.cn included

s
alarge caz~ Inflow of 297 from placing
refinancing ‘n Darlinglon Poirt orior o sale

{restated) Movement
2022 2021

£000 £'000 £'000 %
R::::ean 711 330 pory 302 ,196‘»,&8 N 6;/
----- A - o 47 604 (22 663) - 7.)‘267 7 . VSld%W
360,9017 S 385 512 - l?4 (\ - fbé;
25;415 172,478 --__'-6-3_7-977 o 49%“’“
793169 "éés;"liliéw 93 7/9 .

Financial performance

Qveral, the Group has repored a orofit pefore tax of
£476m for the year ended 30 June 2022 whichis 3
£70.3m imoroverrent on the prior year (2021

£22 7 oss restatedr Oversll EBITDA increased by
§7% wo £195m (2021 £104m restatec), which g
primarily due to increased energy generation as weil
as increased energy orices

Revenue increased by £287m o £712m (2021

‘Farnings before mterest, tax, gepreciation and amortsation

E425m) which was predominantly driven by 2 84%
increase N revenue within our energy division. This
Growta s b

from having owned/operated one <f our bicmass

wo fold, increased energy generauon

plants for the full year ard a targe solar plani in
ioning: and a sign
INCrease 1IN average energy prices over the year due
ta the rmisrmatcn between supply and demand,

Australia rezching comm’ss theant

exaceroated by the cngoing conflict in Ukraine.
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Group finance review

REVENLE Growthn wal strangesT In U enesgy
SN bl WE &80 3aw 3 Markad Mprovernent in

Tris par

revenue from cur retirement vilages
our pusiness has recoundea well frorn the
YIS renured pandan ¢

seamg 41 urits ir the year (an increa

By the Cowd-19

5 nrevenue of £7.5m ¢

Reverue from cur b
Zh% to £42 F021.

ndmg diwvis.on saw a drop of
T} dug to a smailer guera
loan pock over the year as cash was made valable

to grow other parts &7 the buziress,

Operat- 2ar were i Lne wirr

pr

SUr expecialions, with the norease prmanly driven

Dy ‘ncreasen operating costy in our Rbre divsic as
J =
led

i has exgand nCNG extens

ECLIE IMDroves terms ovar 1ne past tw years nas

I nterest costs of L2

controuted to a decrease
to E32.6m {2021 £36 Im).

Included in tre res

1

w2 this year s g profit of £22m
ecogrised on the sale of two wird farms n rintand
ard a reatzation of £2 6m of deferred cons.derat on

on solar etes soid ir previous years

Financial position
Continged sharebolder nterest a~d investment has
seen ret assets arow 1o £2.2

restated) Ir the year mdno .

comMmparative year narnoeri |

consteralion relatng to Grou resiruciur ng

Net current assers of E808m (2021 63 restated]
have ncressed oy £145m, reflecting tne reducton in

Casn and cask equiva.enrts as at 30 Jure 2022 were
2256 (2020 £172) Cash generated rom

speranng activities decreased
£342m) wrich has been stilise 3

long-ernm francing and canital raised ‘oy réw share
esues 1o grow the business We have irvested

subgiantially nto e fore o OF Over

tne past four years which wil require further capita

sxpenaiture cver ihe next 3-5 yaars, .noreasirg our

diversification across 2eGiors.

Of the cast heq at year e~d. £211m was hed n
our energy, horre building and Aore sub<iciaries
where there are a mumber of constractior and

nfrastruciure proects under way, requi n

o]

Cash o

ce réadity ava'\:a'&e for stage payments doe 10 he

E5a7m restated)

ant nureber onthe

e

N the acauisition of some

i reguires thar oy o
o the balance st
Cannot record the bat

va.ae wih ch comors

are expectes to deliver T Lvaae in

sets themselves (such

as colar pane

Put sirply, tre market value of the energy

ation Lusiresses |

gerer

orindeed any operaticnat

alle o future expecied
wrply buying tengble aisets
&5 or wind turpmes We @ay
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Sector performance

Energy

As econom:s achivity and global demand increased
throughout tne year, 50 oo did wholesale energy
orices, driven by maovements in commodity prices,
wrich resultad n tre overall increase in revenue

earmed 32ross our energy sites, Theie markes:

factors have resulted in arircrease in reverue of
84% to F583m {2021 £322m)
Correspondirgly, EBITDA alzo ircreased by 112% to
£266m (2021 [126m restated) reflecting the
sigrifican: increase In energy revenue. Overali total
operating costs ncreazad by £130m o £327r

(2021 £196m restaed). partialy drven by increased
site cogts where £120m was incured at Cur
tiomass sites and £93rm at our reserve power sites,
the prices for raw matenals have ncreased, o
average, by 69% cue to an increase o the supply
costs. The comoined cost of sales for the reserve
power and biocmass sites mcreased by £110m to
£217rn (2021 107m). it sheuld be netea that the
reveriue generated Ly the biomass and resarve
cower sites increased cy £192m during the year to

£353m (2021 £181m

FY2022 FY2021 FY2022 FY2021

Production Production External External

{MWh) {MWh) Availability Availability

Bioriass 1,050,038 586,555 84.6% &4 %

_andhli Gas 240,226 756,076 97.9% 576X

Foserve Power 403,355 141 CE4G 94.2% Uz 0%

Solar 554,858 517112 97.7% 36.0%
Wind 851,214 881,241 90. S/e 931%

Total 3 099 690

2,682,019
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Healthcare

Feathcare operalions contrbUted £46m
ma-ke!l presence Oversgli the dvision regorted an ;
EBITOA toss of £55.4m 2 521 £23 5riioss, wrich !
is i bre with expectations ard reflects the

(2021 £42m;) wo Grous revenues for the year
lecting tre impact of increased revenue in
Rangeford Sales of anartments at tne retirement
vilages have renounded well from the lockdowns
reguired by the Cov.d-12 ganderic response,

developmental siage of the division, !

5]
t

As we build th =t Wil be !
recogrised o the balance sheet a7 co twhéch ;
cannol incude future value whicn s expecied © te

selung 41 units I tne year an norease of 52% from
2021 and ircrea
2021 £127m).

m

G revenue by £76m 1o £20.2m

generated as e alsets have poar interrally

Lending

gererated, Tius s differert to the share price whe

Reverue v Poine future valle exgected 1o be generated from tre :
(2021 £ ! oassets s incuded |
108N B ; Home building
m“:dm - e Elvia momes was acquired im May 2022 and has g
reducea by 6% 10 & - P otrerefore rad lireited impact oo the finans.al
£386m) Ths reducton n the lGan Boox enables performance durng the year The busmess s

sh to be avalable for opoortuniues acrcss cther b (orecact 1o daliver £73r reveque and L8 S :
SECIONS Wil 0 I GrouG MEting SCAUSONS 300 1 ¢p iTop for the year ended 30 June 2027 Results
construclion. The make-up of ﬂ:e @an b‘ﬁOH nas from the first guarter of 2023 inchicate the pusiness '
shifted slightly whnere we have issued a nigher < broadly performing in Ing win expeciators 1
nummber of smaliar loans within the residenug! : i '
sector, as we. as rmore larger loans in the Funding and liquidity
developmen: secior and the commercal secior POur strategy s 1o secure eng-erT fnarcing at :

corsarvative | orm mansearn banks 1o

EB'TDA for the lendng divison decreased to & loss

erhance remm
busrnesses. Alyear end we nad £1.044rm of
xternal proj

R z from aur rerewable energy ‘
of £8 7re from a orofit of nearly £1m i the pnior :

=cts a orovsion of £25m

€

iarcing with £441m of !
ficadrcom avalatie :

agamnst lears versus E20m in tne pricr year.

ac ‘
Fibre : . . ‘
‘ . Togovernment ircentives or proven lechnology and a3 i
AS a relatively mew dvision, aw tre fibre tusinessas : . . ; . !
tosuch have lower retlrns that witnout i=verage woulg ;
are nthe buld : ‘

P obensufficient for our shareholo:

CUSICTrars to ther ~atyy i

CUs A toflexbiity n Fnarcicg our busines i

civiton hag oLlo

Ca;f“: flow We

strategy wouild bk

returm arg share

a
ADDTOLIT FTR Y

2 sreat, the
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the current irterest rate volatility We cont naally

review ﬁﬂaﬁc:ng arrangements to ers.ara tnat they
mpetitive end opumiced for the needs of the
To ensure casr 1s managed in an agile
rranrer we rnainta n a flesible firance faclity
vhIch can be drawn down Cr repald 1o mees

immiediaie pusiness needs

Looking ahead

The Groun has rebounded well from the effects of
the Covid-13 pandemic and has outperiormed
expectations. Whilst the current econom-2 cutloos
is one of challerge and uncertainty, we anticioate
miciral impact or cur restits due to the

pregictatie revenue streams and cost Gase, and

gssental rature ¢f our actvites. Coup.ed with the
dwersificat.on we have buill uo acrcss the pusiness,
we are positioned strongly for these turbulent

times anead

We continue to pay parucllar attent
challenges of rising interest rates and surging

inflaton — both in terms of lencirg and portfolic

on o e twn

ese rends impact all of the

e likely to remain far the

management, Th areas
Group's bdsiness and ar
foreseeab.c future, so we remair disciplired '\n our
investmert agoroacn, coniinuing to montor the

situation carefuily and @aking a orudenrt approach to
ary cu

rent and emercing risks

We are positive about the continued opporiunity

for growtn and conunue to beseve that the
business 1s positonec well to take advaniage of
future growth opportunities acress iIts core business
Energy, lending and house bullding

well establsi-ec in the marke! anc

areas
Operations are
continue to make excellent progress with robust

performances in the new financial year. In ine with
our planned strategy, since the year end we scid a
large solar farm in Australia for a sreal proft, with

proceeds being redeployed irto new opporiimties

Deployment into fibre cortnues to roll out in tng

with expectatons and the Gfoup Fas now passec
more than 158,000 homes by our fibre networks
care divés.ion rermans
sales budget

Crved across ad sites as at

Lvity In our hasit
b onearly 40% ©
aiready corrapleted ar res

Sales ac

sSrong, w fannua,

the end of Seprember

Annourced within o auturnn siatemant as part o°

overnment will
anerator

the 2023 rinance Bill, the UK G

erart a 457% windfall levy UElectricity &

Levy" or "B on wholesale energy marke?
enues ir excess of E75/MWh Trrs s exn

a@plf to the Group rom 1 wnuarj JZZ to 32

i tle

in mid-Cecemoer 2022, but cased on the intial

ralease an mpact analysis 1

as at 30 Septemngper 2022 We estimate the

to be a drop nvaluat:on of approximately £45m

cerforme
impact

for the sies affecied which contrib

¢ share crnice to 277 0p in

2 3p dacraasein th
December 2022

We expect o
frorm cur es
n addiion to the anticipated cutflows for cur

healthcare and

o generate strong operatng returns
tablish Cd awisions for the

construction phase assets " he
finre divisions are well Inte therr buld shase in ine
with cur lorg-term strategy and we anticipate

strong returrs over the next fve to

SEVRI YEars

Upon reatunty

PS Latham
Director
16 Cecerrber 2022

coming years

<t B8
v
kit ‘“23
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022.

For a surmmary of the Group's results, refer to the Trie Groug's oectves and golicies on financ at rsk
Group fnarce review N page 23 i maragerrent including inforrnation on the

xpocure of the Groun © credit risks, dgquidity reks :
The directors have not recommended payment of ExpeeuE of (NS Lroun 1o credr e, 19001y e !

o - . ale} rket risks are set out nnote 21 (¢ the
dividend (2021, €M) and ma @

fma.ﬂd i staterments The Group's principal risks are :
st oul 1IN The strafegic report on page 16,

Tne directors of tne Comgany wiro were in 0%ice . . o .

and up to the date of signing me

i As af;rfmtte-:] by section 414c (11) of the Companies
Tents were, :

ACL 006, tre drectors have slected to dscinse

FS _atharn

et en requ req o be in e diradtors report

Jf the ‘large ard Medium-sized
Sroups (Accourts ard Repors) ;
u8, e strategic report

K3 Witey
PG Bariow

I Arthur (appor-ted 1 July 20

Refer to note 23+ the Notes 1o tie financal P The 3o recognises that a comorate culture
staternents ! based on sound ethical valuas arg beraviours 15 an 3
i oasser Tre Group erdeavours o conduct its 4
SO S SO NN R bus' ress with rmiegrity, n an &rica, crofessiona:
Refer 1o the Strategic Report on page 8 i oand responsh.e mancer, reating our employess, }

CUSTSTErs, Supplers ars sariners with courtesy

Acplicatons for ermployment oy dizan.ed persons

are given full ard far considerat'on for aid
J

vatancles hawnng regars to treir particdar apiiedes
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ish o ke
informed and consulted on matters affecting their
to be mvalved in problem-solving affecting

We fully realise mat cur emnployses w

work and
thelr own areas of interest and resconsibility,

The Grouz is frmly comrn.ited to a policy of goad
commumncat-on at alevels and we aim to estatlsh
3 clirrate which constantly encouraces the onen
flow of inforratcon and ideas. Presently tnis
ncludes monthiy tearm briefngs at a ocal level anc
the publcation of menthly key cerformance
naicators covering outoul, operating costs and
Peslth and safsty

The Grouo has in place an agreerent with Octopus
investments Limited to provide services to the
Groug covering operatonal oversighg,
aorninistration, comgany secretarat and company
accountng

N T B

- o = S N TN

The Board acopted a formal envicormental, sccial

and corporae governance ("ESGT) policy on
20 September 2020 Tne Group recogrises the

ner that is

need w© conduct its husiness, Ina mar
resgonsiole to the envirorment, wherever possible.

As a low ene Fnot
to discleze data
Fern Trading Limited i the

Group that meais the re

oy user, the Companry has elected
onits enersy and carbon usage
only Company in the
port:nc criterig and

5 provided for the Croup

therefore no information

as a whoie.

The Group's has an Ant-Brbery Poticy wiich
introduced robust procedures o ensure full
complignce with the Bribery Act 2010 ard to ensur
that the h:ghest standaras of professional ethical
conduct are mantained,

In accordance witn the recommeandaons of The UK
Corporate Goverriance Coge, the Qoard has

conadered the arrangements in place 1© encaurage
staff of the
concerns, in confidence, with
abcul possicle impropreties i matters of financial
It 15 satishe L adeg

arrangements a= in place o aliow an mdependant

Group or manager of the Group o rake

L inelr crgarisaticn

reporting or cther matiers. uae

investigaton, and follow-on achior where necessary,

to taxe place within the organisation

ntegrity in all our cusinass deslirg: and

relauonshps and o imglernenting and enforcing
effecuve systems and Cortrois to ensure maoaerr

slavery 15 NCt akng piace anywnere r our O
pusiness or i ary of sur supply chains, ¢

wilh our obligarons under the Moden &
2015 We expect the
of our contractors, suppliers and other
partners As part oF our contracling processes, we

CONSISRNT
Slavery Act
sarme high standards from all
business
expact our suptiers 1o comply with the Modern
Slavery Act 2015

The directors are resporsible for precarning the
tne financial statermnents in
¢ reguiaton.

Anruat Rezortand t
accordance with agphcable law an

Company law requires the directors to orepare
fnancial staternents for each financial year, Urder
trat law the directors nave presared e Groun and
Cornpary finarnicial statements in accordance with
Urited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice {Uniteg Kingdom Accounting Standards,
comprising FRS 102 "The Finarcial Reportmc
Stardard applicable in the UK ang Reputlic

Ireland”, ard apclicable law). Under company law
tre director: must not ap;arove the drancial
shied that they give a

statements uniass thiey are ca
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true ard faic view of the state of 35ate of the Group

and Comgany and of the proqt or loss of the Group

and Comoany for that pe fiod nooreparing the
5

franc.al statemeants, the directors ara reguired 1o

+ select sutable accourting pal c e and then appy

therm consiztently:
+ state whether applicanle Ur
anagrds, conmpn
beer fGllo wed sutect 1o any materia. depariures

Accountin

disC.0Sed and exp lained in the inancia

staternents:

« rake judgenents and accousting estirms
rudent; and

are reasonanle and

+ prepare the financ gl staterments on the goirg
concern basis urless it < inappropriste to
presume that the Group anc Corpany wil,

CoNTinuS N CUS.ress.

safequard rg

Tne direciors are a.so resporsble for
rd
J

ir ¢ assets of the Group and Company and e

for taking reasonabie stens for tra Sreventor and

ffravd and

other irregu.arities

The directors are resoonsble fer keeping aceguate

il

Coountng records that are sufiic ent 1o show and

explain the Grouo and Cormoany's transact o7s anc
PN

& with reasonable atcuracy at ary trme the

cial oesitien ¢f the Group and Compary and
mat the financial

comply with e Companigs Act 200

e thenr o ensire statenents

Tra drectors are resoonsibie for tre ma ntenance
and mwegnty of the Company's wesie Legisiation

I tne Jned K rgdorn governing the oreoarat on

Vi cther urisaictiones,

e of Associatcn, the
directors have e beneft of aninaemeity wiich 15
a gLabfyng wird-oarty indermimnity provis on as

defined by section 234 of the Cormipanes Act 2006,
f

“he indemrely was i- force throughiout the last

anancial year and s carrently n force,

each d
s approved

s0 far g the diractor 1§ gwase, there 5 nG relevant
avd tinformation of whic the Groug and

Compary's audinors are unaware, ard

« trey have aken all tne cteps that trey cught

oy
3
-
41}
<
i
ot
b
=
¢
]
[
&
o
&}
=
w
I

Ciorin order 1o Make
therrselves awars of any re!evari% audit

eslablisn
> aware of that

nformatior and o at the Croug and

Compary's aud ors are imformation

This confirmat on < given and s~ould be 'niepreted
srovisions of secuon 418 of
“he Camparses Act 20046

I accordance with the

in 202z,

reappoied

frezt & Young (P mavng veen apoorned

have indicated thair wilingriess 1 be r
‘or another terr and win ne propoied for re-

Zpoo Niment in accordaﬂ.ce Witk section 485 of the
Compan.es Act 2006,

The Directors o
Directors on 16 Decembsr 2022 arg sgrned on s

benalf by

PS Latham
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independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Lpinion

We have audited the
Trading Limited {'the Parent Company’) and s
{the Group’) Forth e year ended 30

firancial staterments of terr:
subsichanes
Jurie 2022 which comprize the Groun Statement of
nd Parent
aement of

Comprehenzive Incorre, t~e Group a
Company Balance Sheet, the Group St
Cash Flows, the Group and Parent Statement of
Chances in Equity and the related noies 1 tc 29,
including a summary o° significant accounting
policies The financiat reporting f:amew that has
nDeen appiec Inther preparation s applicable law
and United Kingocom Accourting Standards
ncluding FRS 107 ""he Financial Renorting
Standerd acprcabie in the UK and Sepublic ¢f
reland” IUnited Kingdorn Generaly Accelied

Accounung Practce),

In our cpinen, the finanoial staternents

« qive g rue and far view of the Growps and of the
Farert Comoany's affairs as at 30 June 2022 and
of tne Group's nroft for the year then ended,

« nave peen properly gregared in accordance wiith

United Kingdom Gererally Accapted Accounting
Fractice; and

« have geen prepared in accordance with the
reglirements of the Companies Act 2008,

Basgis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
nternatonal Standards on Auditing (UK) 1SAs (UK)
and anpacable law. Our rasponsibiiities under thcse
standards are further descnbac in the Auditor's
respansibiities for the audt of the finarcial
statements section of our report, We are
‘ndependerit of the Group in accordance with the
ethical reguiremeanrts tnat are resevant 1o our audit of
rcal statements in the UK imcauding the
FRC's rthical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsitilites in accordance with
these requirements

A ‘]( NS

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obraned is sufficient and apprepriate 1 prov de a
bas.s for our opirion.

Conclusions relating o going concern

In audting the finarcial staternents, we Nave
luded th

ala at the directars use of the going
concern bazls of accountrg in e pregaration of

tre financial statements is aporopnaie.

aszed on the work we bave
not identifed any rnaterai uncertanties relating to

e performeas, we mave

everis or condiions that, indwiduslly or cotiectively,
may cast sigrifcant douost on the Group and Parent
by to continue as a going concern
alve maonths from when the

Company's an
for & periog of tw

finarcial staterrents are authonsed for iszue.

Our responsibiites and the responsib tes of
trie directors with rescect 1o going concern
are described i tne reievart sections of trig
report Haowever, because not all future events or
conditicns can be predicteg, this statenrent 15 not a
guarantee as 1o the Group's adi.ly to continue as a

goiNg concern,

Oither information

The other information comprises the infermation
ncluded n the arnual report, cther than the
firanc al staterrents and our auditer's report
thereon. The directors are responsinle for the oher
informat.on contained within the annual report

ncia: statemeants does ~ot
and, except to the

tated n this report we

Sur opinion or the fira
cover the other infermation
extent othenwise explicitly 5
a0 not express any form of assurance conclusion
therecn.

Our responsibility is to read the other information
and. in domg so0, consider whether the cither
inforration 1s materiaily nconsistent with thg

financizl staterrents or our knowledgs obtainad In
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the course of the audit or otherwise acpears W be 1« certain discosures of Direciors remuneraticn ;

raaterally nissiated |f we identy cuch masera: specified by faw are nct rrade, or

inconsisterces o nare™ mater.al missiatements,

« we have not receved zll the In“ormation and

3
we gre required to determing whiether ths gves nse . .
; exp.anaticors we requ re for cur aud?t

o & ratenal misstaiement in the finanoial

siaternents themsewes If, based on tre wors we < PN §§3§'§$Shii;ﬁi&$ of directors
Have perfc—rmed, we concluze that there s a

. e ‘ As explained more fully iy the Directers
matenal misstaternen: of the oiror information, we

. ‘ respensibilities staiement set out on pages 29 and i
are recured o report thar “zct - .
Sthe Drecters are responsible for the preparation
of the financia
v tnat ey gwve a true and fair view, and for suck
Qgsmmsng on other malters prascribed | noma cortrol as tre Girectors determine s

by the Companies Act 2008 :

Ne have nothing to reoort 1In this regarc,

Dstatements and for being satisied

mecessafy o engble the nreparat.on of financia:
that

are from fromn maternal

0

N CuUr opinion, Based on s work Lrderia<ern i
e

the course of the audit iomesstatement, weetrer due to fraud or erroe !
H i

+ the mfarmation given in e Sirase rd i preparing the financial staiements, tne Cirectors :
the Directors’ report for the fnancial year for Poare respensible for assessing the Group's and the Z
which the financal staternents are prepared $ P Parent Cormpany's abinty 10 contin e as a going i
cons.sient with the fina~2.al siaternents, ard Poconcern, discioang as applicable, matters related i

. to gong concerr and using the gaing corcere
= ke Strategic renctt and Rirectors repaort nave P07 o ‘ = 32Ny ) §
- pasis of accourtng urless the Directors sither !
{
i

beer prepared sr zccordarce with agolicaole : .
. tintend o hquidain the Group or the Parent
fegal regquirerments :
i Company or o wease operatons, or have no
: I ; ; P reaistic alternatyve oLl o do so. :
Matters on which we are reguired to P TeASC Siternalye DL o do 5

reapnort by exception

Auditor's rasponsgibilities {or the audiy
of the fnancial slatements

Cur cbectives are 1o oblalr reascnakie assurince
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srvironment obktained in the course of the audit,

) ) . . sbous whether the fnancial statermeants az a whole
we have nct icertihed matenal misstatements in
e . , , . are free from meatena!l misstaterrant, woetner due
e Strategic report or Directors’ repori.
fraud o error 2 tossue an audiicr’s report

We nave nothsg to report i respect of the includes cur opr or. Reasorable assurance is

following maters in relat.or to wich the gt level of azsurance, butis rot a guaraniee that
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Cormparies Act 2006 requires us (o report o you |
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Explanation as to what extent the
aydit was considerad canable of
detacting irregularitiss, Including
framdd

lrregu.arizies, including fraud, are insarces of non-
We des)
proceaures in line witn our respons bilites,
above, to detec: irregularites, including fraud Trne

compliance with laws and requialions, SIgr

outlire

jol

nek of not detectng & maleria. misstaternent due 1o
frauct is higher than the risk of not dewecling one
resulting frorm error, as fraud may involve deiberate
concea.ment oy for axamzle, forgery or imtentional
misrepresentatians, or througn coilusicn. The
extent (o waIch our procedures are capanie of
detecting irreguianties. ncwuding fraud 1s detalied
helow. However, the primary responsibiity for the
pravention ard detechion of fraud rests witr bots
those cnarged wirn governarce of the entity and
management.

Cur approacn was as ollows

« We obtained an understarding of tne legal ang
regulatory frameworks that are applicabie 1o the
Group and determired that tne moczt sigrificant
are those that relate to regorting framework [FRS
102 and the Corrparies Act 2006).

» We underztoos how Fern Trading Limited is
compying with those frarmeworks by making

anguines of mmanagement, those charged with

govarnance and those responsible for legal

and complance procedures as 10 any fraud risk

frarework withn the entity, including whether

cleted We

corraborated our enquiries thraugh review of the

a formal fraud risic assessment s com

following documentation or performance o the

following procedures.

= obtaning an understanding of entity-leve,
contro.s and considering the influence of the

contral ervironment;

+ obtainng an understanding of polices anag
proceaures Ir place regardirg comphance
tions, iNcwdng how

S montored

with laws and reguiat in
cempldarce with such policies
and enforced, obtainmg an understanding of
ranagarrent’s process for igentity ng and
respordng to fraud risks, ircluding prograrns
and controis established to adoress risks
identifes, or Uthenwse prevent, deter and
detect fraud, and how sen.or management

rmenitors those programs ch controls;

« review of hoard meerning minutes in the period

and up o date of 2gning

We assessec the susceotibility of the Group's

taements (o matenal misstatement,
how fraud migh

dit team which mcluded:

financial 5
nicluding occur oy holding &

discussion withm the au

sarties,

« igenufcation of related

+ urgerstanding the Group's business, the

conrol erviromment and assess.ng ne inherent
rizk for relevant assertions at the sigrificant
account level including giscussions with
rmanagement o gain ar understamdmg of
those areas of the financa: statemenrts which
were susceptible 1o fraud, as identihed by

maragement; and

o considered the contrels that the Group has
established o address nzks identified by
the entity or that otherwise seek to pravert,

eter or detect fraud incuding gaining an
cntrols

understanding of the entity level © anac

polcies that the Groun applie

Based
audit procequres 10 dentify ner-complance

ns Our procedures
thrcugh

o~ this understanding we designed our

with such aws and regulatic
nvelved testing of journal entries

journa!l analytics tools, with focus on meanuat
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

journals, large or unusual transactions, or journals
meeting our defined risk criteria based on our
understanding of the business; tested accounting
estimates for evidence of management bias;
enquiring of members of senicr management
and those charged with governance regarding
their knowtedge of any non-compliance

or potential non-compliance with laws and
regulations that could affect the financial
statements: and inspecting correspondence,

if any, with the relevant icensing or reguiatory
authorities.

A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial siatements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's report.

v 5. s ¥ far LT RN
Vi and ey o

This report is made solely to the Company's
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state

to the company's members those matlers we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company’s members as a body. for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Frnasbirs fku__lo

Michae! Kidd (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Emst & Young LLP, Statutory
Auditor

Belifast

20 December 2022
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Troun profit and loss sccount for the vear ended 36 June 20284
{restated}
2022 2021
o o o Mote £'000 £'000
}df;ofer o R A5 AR RS AT SR KA 0 B e s i R SR e \1 711830 . u:ﬁszOZ
st of saes {410,883) (221.277)
G}o}.; profit 300,947 204025
Adrrristative expenses (258,251) (231.844)
Operatmg prohtl(loss) 2 h 42 696 7 1278 9)7 V
Otmern incorme 1 3,550 9454
ncome from other fixed asset nvesomeants 5,249 449
Share of cperating profit e joint venture - 1.755
Proft on disposal of subsic ares and joint venture & 29,533 28,568
Oitrier noorect recevab e ana similar income 4] 130 997
riterest payole and similar charges 5 (33.554) (36.067)
Proﬁt/(loss) before taxation o S ;i:lw604 [22,663) 7
Tax on prr“’”hl\los 7 (16 294} (8 z49)
promtess forthemanciizer wman om
Attributable to Fern 37932 {(27.00%9)
Minority interest (6,622} (4.007)
- Csy3e 0 z1012)

All r=sults relze w©

continu ng aclviles Note 26 cetails the pricor nened acjustments,

Group statement of comprehensive income for the vear ended 38 Juns 2022

s RN

Proﬁtl(loss) for the fmancnal year

Other comprehensive income
Moverrents 0 cash flow nedges

I oraign ud 1arge gain/lios

Other comprehenswe income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
Attributable to

+ Owners of the parent

* Non-controlling interests

on. rekmwlat on r‘f fubalf;ldr'w

{restated)
2022 2021
£'000 e 2000
e
77,985 44983
18,561 (333)
96546 44650
127856 13,638
134,478 17645
(6,622) (4,007
T 127856 13638




{resrated)

2022 2021 :

Mote £000 £ eo0

leed assets :

Intargible assets 8 557,708 576,729 i
Tangible ass=ts ] 1,893,430 1.581.682

Iruestrments 10 35,452 11,000

S T g age890 2169421 :
Currentassets S S :
Stocks 14 184,479 94711 i
Debtors | ncluding £1587 (2621 £16 111} z 623,161 598,007
due after more thar one year) i
fdm at bark a~d 1 harvd 1 256 415

""" o 1064055

Cred[tors amounts fa(tmg due wsthm one year o ' . - 14 o 1 52) {
Net current assets ‘ v - o 79 3
Total assets less current liabilities ” ' 3294493 2832555
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 5 o (992 425)- 9O3739\m ‘
Provisions for liabilities 7 92,6200 141,572) j
Net assets - - - 2219448 1887342 |

Capital and reserves

Called wp snare capna’ 18 161,662 149676

1
Share grermiurn aocount 364,882 173,118 :
Mergor reserya 1,635,569 14401257

63,006 {14979 !

Cash flow hedge

2 ofitand | { (2 770) 136 049 i
Total shareholders funds 2,222,349 1884121
Nor- rqrmu ng ‘ricrests (2.901) 3721
Capital employed 2,219,448 1887842 i
Note 26 det
Tresa cansal o 92 were aoproved by the Boara of directors on
18 Decermner i
PS Latham

CIrector

Registerec romner L26016326
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Company balance sheet as at 30 June 2022

2022 2021
o N MNote £000 £000
FI;Edasse¢;54 e AR A AR SR 3 A A RS RS - e
Invasiments 10 2,539,978 2,116,366
cufrem assets S
Debitors 12 39,888 5,383
6, 422 1,523

Cash at bank ar<l in hand 11

Credltors amounts falllng due wn:hm oneyear

Net current assets

48310 _f_

45 861

Total assets I.ess current llabnlltles 2 585,839 2 14’3 348.m
Net assets 2,585,839 2145348
Capital and reserves

Caied up share capitsl 18 161,662 149676
Share prerniurn account 364,882 173,118
Merger reserve 1,986,457 1791145
Drofit and ‘rJ cournt 72,838 31409
Total shareholders funds T - T ZWSmBMS BZBWW M W/ 145, 34P N

The Cornpany has elected to take the exemption under secucn 408 of the Comparies Act 2005 not to

present tre Company proft and loss accourt, The profit for the financ.al period deal: with in tre financial

statements of the Company was £236.742,000 (2021 loss of £157,504 GO0}

These financial statements on pages 85 to 92 were approved by the Board of dir
anid are sigred on thair behalf by

PS Latham
Director
Registered number 12601635

ecers on

w60

eCe

miber 2022




CIRIANIC I AT CTATERMIONTC Z0 1LIMNE 2000
4 § FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 20272
Group statement of changes in eguity for the yasr ended 30 June 2022
Called up Share Merger Cash fiow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest {restated)
(restated) {restated) funds
{restated)
£000 £000 E'000 £'000 E'000 E'QO0 E'000
138,435 (41,1853) 1668982 G570 1678552
Pror penod - - - 3475 13828 7703 - Y7703
agj.sirmerts inct
138435 - 1635589 59,962) (27,356} 1686685 5570 1696.255
- - - - (27005 {27.005) (4.007) (31,012}
- - - 44,983 - 44,983 - 44.983
- 33% (3335 {355
- - - 46583 [£53) 44,650 - 44650
';;r,;\ cr.%,z;e?.e s
maperse for e yoar - 44,383 127338 17645 14007 13638
reniated)
“orrreling
- - - - 831 1,83L {1,842 s
- - (195,312} - 195,312 - - -
11655 173118 - - - 184203 - 182 802
{444) - - - (A.399 16,843} - 16,843}
143,676 375118 1440257 i14.979) 136,045 1884121 371 1887842
Balance as at
1 July 2021 {restated) 149,676 173,118 1,440,257 (14,979} 136,049 1884,121 3,721 1,887,842
Profit for the
financial year 37,932 37.932 (6,622} 31,310
Changes in market
value of cash flow - - - 77,985 - 77,985 - 77,985
hedges
Foreign exchange
loss on retranslation - - - - 13,561 13,562 - 18,561

of subsidiaries
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Called up Share Merger Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
account reserve account holders' interest
] funds
’ . £'000 £'000 E'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Other
comprehensive _ _ _
 icomel(expense) for 77,585 18,561 96,546 96,546
- theyear - i
Total camprehensive
. income/(expense) for - - 77,985 56,493 134,478 {6,622) 127,856
' theyoar . . . :
- Utitisation of merger. 2% _ 1905 312 _ (195,312) _ _ _
reserve . . ' " !
- Sharesissued during. 191,764 - - - 203750 - 208750
theyear . .
‘Balance as at
30 June 2'022_._‘ . 364,882 1,635,569 63,006 {2,770) 2,222,349 (2,901) 2,219,448

 Note 26 details ‘t‘he pricr cenod ad,ustments,

v .

Company statarment of changes in equity for the yvear ended 39 June 2022

Called Share Merger Profit Total
up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’

capital account account funds
o o E'000 £'000 ) . 000 — £000 E'000
Sslance stincorporation - - Trm T -
Loss for the financial year i L o - o - (157504)77 (]_5750‘4)
Utilisation of merger reserve - - 1195.312) 195312 -
Total comprehensive income. - - Cuesmam  a7Ece 157504
Shares issued during the year 150120 173118 1586457 - . 2,309,605,
Shares cancelled during the vear (444} - - 6,395) 6843
Balance as at 30 June 2021 149676 a73118 4791145 31,409 2,145348 |
Profit for the financial year - - - 236,741 - ?36,741.
Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312 (195,312) Lol
Total comprehensive income - —195312 o 41,429 ‘23'5',741‘
Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - - i 203,,750 .
Shares cancelled during the year - - - - - :
Balance as at 30 June 2022 161662 364882 1986457 72,838
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roup statement of cash Hows for the vesr endaed 30 June 2022

MNote 2022

B Tt R e [ PR R

Cash flows from operating activities

Prosit/ioss) for the financial year attribatable to the owners ©F the parent 37,932

Adjustments for:

Tax on profitdioss) 7 16,294
I~terest recatvatle and sirn lar income 6 (130)
Irierest payabic and other sirmiiar charges 6 33,554
Profit or disposat of subsidiaries and .oint verture 2 (29,532}
Income from joint venture -
Incorrme from fxed asset investments (5,249}
Ammcrisation and smparmrent of intangisle fxed assels 24 45,762
Deprecs 3 101,802
MNori-cast swaif costs 3,040
Movernents or dervanvaes and fore 9o excrangs {18,044)
Ircreese in stock (19,829}
Uncreasei/decrease i gebiors 31,022
IPCressof dnareascy 1 arerditors (173,956)
Non-coriroling interests 9 (6,622)
la> receye 25,853
Net cash generated from operatlng acilvmes T 41.,897»
caSh ﬂows from investing activities e e e e e e
Purcnase of subsicdhary undortaikergs (net of cash agguirect {52,377)
Sare O sunsidiary undertakings and joint venture 101,778
Puremase of tangible assets {322,446)
Purcrase of intana:ble assets (7.222)
FlLronase of urlisted mvestrmerts (124,203)
Sate of unlisted mvesTmaents 13 105,000
Irterest receved 6 130
Income frorm ot ventare -
Net cash used in investing activities o (2;99,340) o
Cash flows from financing activies
Proceeds trom firancing 201,719
(32,319}

Repay™erts of inarciryg (32,013)
Proceeds from share iscue 15 203,750

: 18 -
Net cash generated from ﬁnancmg actswtles S 341 137
Net (decrease)hncrease in cash and cash equlvalents o o 83 694
Casn anc casn equva.ents at the ceg nnimg of ine year i1 172,478

Crchiangs gairs on cash and casr exdvalents I 243 o

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yearw 11W »256,4IM5 o

E'OOD o

{rostated)
2021

oo
(27.005)

8,344
{997
36,068
28,568
(1.755)
{449)
37704
84697
8,375
(19,788)
(5,701)
245,374
6,871
4,007)
(1 7 1;

341517

(221,987}
34,503
(110,457}
(875)
{29,617
20133
897

1 077

3“6 220I

{35,552}
(212 676]
184,359

(6,399}

(70,268)

(34.577)

206,688

367

172478

Note 26 detalls tme prior pericd 2dustments.
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Statement of accounting policies

Company information

Fern Trading Limied {the Company') is 2 private company lrmitea by shares and incorporated on 14 May
23 0. Tne company s dorriciled in Engiand, th& nited Kingdorn and regisiered under company nurnber

2601636 “he aadress of the registered off ce s at 6th Floor, 33 Helgorn, London, England, ECIN 2HT

Statement of m@m;ﬁ%msm

The Group ara irdividual francial staterments of fern Tradirg Limited nave been orepared In compt ance
with United {in gdor" Accounrtng Standards, includmg Financa! Hﬂporhr“ﬁ Standarg 102, The Financal
Reporing Standard acpuacable in the United Kingdom and tne Republc of reland {=R3 102 ard tne
Cormpanies Act 2008,

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The fnanc al statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, under tne Ristonical cost convention,

3s madified by the recogrition of Certann financal assets and liabilities measurad at far value, and
accordance with e Compan.es Act 2006 ard “ricable ac COUF‘U.’TL}‘ srardards nthe United Kimgdom Tre
onncipal accountng col cies, whicn nave peen apglec consistenty throughout t¢ year, are set out below

Tne consclidated financal staterrents include the results of all subsdiares owned by Fern Traging Limitea

s listed iIr note 29 of the anrual irancal statements, Certan comparugs ¢f théese subsidianes, which are
sted rnote 28 have taker the exemption from an audit for the year er\ded 20 June 2022 perrmitted by

section 4794 of Companies Act 2006, 1n crder (¢ alicw these suowgianes 1o take the audit exerrption, the
parent compary has given a stalutory guarantee, nlns with section 472C of Comparies Act 2006, of all
the cutstanding net lapilities as at 30 June 2027

Golng concern

The Group's and the Compary's business activities, together vaith the factors Ikely 1o affect its future
development, performance anc positior are set out the Strategic Report o pages 4 to 14, Tne financial
position of tre Group. ‘ts cash flows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities are described in the Tnancial
raview on pages 23 to 27 The principal rsks of the Group are set cut on pages 16 1o 19

The Directors perform an annua. gong concern review that considers :he Groun's ability 1@ meet its
financial obugations as they fail due, for a period of at least twelve montns after the date that the financial
statements have been signed.

Cue to the chalengi~g rnacket conditiaons man ‘agﬂr‘ ent have perfarmed an assessment to determing
whether there are any material unceraintes ansing that could cast sigrificant doubt on the aoiity of the
Group o continue as a going concern. No swgmﬁca nt issues have been noted and as 3 conseguence, the
directcrs beleve that the Group is well placed to manage its business risks suc ceschlly despite the current
uncertamn econcmic cutlook.

Al ,§f¢ 2t
g*m-
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irectors nave reviewed the firancial mpact of tre uncertainiy or tre
Grcup's baance smeet, profit and loss and cash flows with specific consideratuon grven to the following.

A reverse stress test was performed on the base case forecast to ascertar whal scenanos would result in

risks 1o the Groups hauidity position The test showea even i an un:ikely scarano of a sign ficant reducton
of reveniue of 46%, the Group
cue for at least 3 year from the date of sigrmg these financal statements when uolismg the ava lable

faciiities w thin tre Group

Tre Group nas a number of inancing facilines that contain covenants requirng the Group 1o maintain
specificd financial ratios snd comply with certain othier inarcial covenants, These Arancial covenants are
tested at least quarterly, and, at the date of this report, the Group isir compliarce with aliifs ﬁnarcial

covenarts St s tesis on reasorably plausibie scenanos sucin as a significant reduction n EBITDA of 84%

res
over time aave peen osed to asses: the covenant regurements for the at least the nex: twelve montas ard

al covenants nave been forecasi tc os met even under tne stress test scenario, it the going corcern pernicd

At 30 June 2022, the Group hac avaiasie T and nezdroom avalatle of £441m mcuucing a
reyolving credit facitity of £210m. Diebt of £85m is due to mature in less Than one year, witk the rermmainder
of £956m payabic n more than o~ e year

>3, regayiment dates anc uodrawn amouris are
set out ir Note 16 Loans ana Borrowirgs

Rey accf)umtmg judgement ard estumates have peen made wih consderat or Siver to the currert
cconomic outlock Key estimaies include loar recoveratility, valuation of work in progress
decommissioning provisiors, imipairment of goocwill and investments, busine

comoinalons and nedge

accounting. Detalls are set out on gages 50 to 51

Based on the above assessment of cusrent econom’c conditions and the \mpac: on tne Group's fnancial

oosition, kguioity ard financsl covenars, the crrector: nave conc.uded that the Group and Company has
adequiate resources to continue 1r eperaticnal existence for the next 12 metths Thus, tney continue 1o

adogr the gomng concerr bazis of accourting v prepanng the annual inancial statemerts

Exemplions for gualifving entities under FR5 40

FRS 102 aliows & qualfying enuly certarr ciscicsure exemplions, subject to cerain conditions, whicn have
yeer camphied wih, ‘r'ldudértg notifcation of and no apjection ©, e use of exermipticrs oy the Company's
shareholcers

Tre Company haz taken advaniage of the following exempnc

from preparing 2 statemrert of cash flows, o Tne bas s trat it is a cuarfying entty and tre consoldated

statement of cash flows, ircluded in these financial statemearts, inc.uded the Company's cash Fows;

requred uwider FR5 107 paragraprs 11 35 to 11 4584 andg

caragrants ;2.26 to 12,29, as the :nformat cn < orovided 1 the corsolaaed fnancie, statement
osare

. from desziozirg the Cornpany “ey management Dersonne!l compensauon, as reguired oy FRES 122
carsaraph 237

$1414000

iu::%‘sw . (,}

aﬁf‘

apie to sustain its current operational cosis and meet aid Latklities as they fal
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Statement of accounting policies

Basis of comsolidation

The consohdated fimancial staternents include the results of Fern Trading Lirrited and all 3 subsidiary
undertakings made up to the same amom*mg gate. Al intra-group balances, tfransactions, income anrd
expenses are elimmated in full or consciadation. The results of subsid'ary undertakings acguirsd or disposerd
of aurnng the pericd are incl.ded or excluded f.’()f’] the ircome staternent from the effective date of
arouisiion of disposal

Ail undertskings over which the Group exeraises contral, be ng the power to govern the financa. and
operating policies so as to obtain pensfts from their activiiies, are corsoldated as subsd.ary undertak ngs
Where a subsidiary nas different accodnting policies w© the Grouo, adjustments are made (0 those
subsidiary financial staterments o apoly the Group's accouning policies when preparing the consol dated

finaricial staterments,

Ary subsidiacy Lrdeartakings or associates sold or acaurad dunirg tre year are includec up to, or fram, the

dates of change of control or change ©f signifcant influence respecuvely

Wnere me Grous bas written a put cotion cver shares neld by & nor-contraiding interest, te Group
derecogrises tre non-contreiling inferest and instead recogn sed contingent deferred consicaration labilizy
w thin othar payaoles for (ne estimated amourt lixely 1o be pa d to the ron-controlling interest on sxertise
of those op;éons. The residual amount, representirg the difference between any considerat on paid/payab.e
and the non-controling irterest's share of net assets, s recogrised as goodwill Movements in the

estimated labiity after initial recognition are recognsed as goodwi

Forelgn currengy

i. Functionai and presentation currency
Tha Grous financial statements are preserted in cound stering and rounded to thouzands

The Compary's functional and gresentation currency is pound steriing and rounded & thousands.
ii. Transactions and balances

Fareign currency transactions are transiatec inta the funclional currency using the spot exchange rates at

ar

the dates of the transachons At each penod end foregn currency monretary terns ae translated usirg the
closing rate Non-moretary iterns measured al historical cost are translated using the excnange rate at the
date of the transaction and nos-monetary terms measured at far vaiue are measured using the excharge
rate when fair value was getermined. Fore:gr exchange gans and losses resulling from the settlement of
transacticns ard from the trarslat.on at penod-end exchange rates of monetary aszets and Habilities
denominated in foreign currences are recognised o the profit and loss account.

All foreign exchange gains ard losses are cresented in the profit ara loss account within ‘adririsirative
expenses’

iii. Translation

The tracing results o Group undertakings ars ransiated 1mto sounds sterling at the average exchangs rates
for the year The assets and liabilities of overseas uncertaxings, inciuding goodwill ard far value adjustiments
arising on acquisition, are translated at the excnange rates ruling at the yea~end. Exchange ad usirments
arising from the retrans.ation of opening ret investments ad from the translation of the profits o7 13523

at average raes are recognised in 'Other comorenensive :ncome’ and allccated to non-controling interest
as ropr.ate.
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Statement of accounting policies

Turnover
Tre Group operaies @ number of classes of Cusiress, Revenue s derivea oy the following

s Energy
Tur-over from the szle of elecricily gengrated Dy olar farms, wnd gencrating assets, reserve power
plants and biormass and landil sitez s 'gcognized or an accrua.s bazis In the par od imwhick s
genergted. Reverus from long-term governmen: backed offtake agresments, such as the Benewanle
Chigator Cernficanor ('ROCT) scheme arg accrugd in the penod inwhign it relates to Turnover from the

sale of fertliser by biormass and andhl busimesses iz recognized on prysical dispaich

Turrover is recogrised when the sigrincant risks a ownarship of retirerren: properties have
LA

passad to the buyer (0" legal compiat on), the amoLunt of revenue car be recogrised relably, and it s

2
probable trat the econorac oenefts asscciated with the transaction wi'l flow 1o the entity Turnover
i =

~ors deration rece vea for heathoare services orovided In the noreal

conrse of business, and s shown ret of VAT, Tur~over 5 recogrised bases on the date tre service s

orovided.
+ Lendng

rast 0N loans provided o customers, ret of any vaue

Turmcver represents arramgerient ‘ees and n
A

added tax Lcar asis n.newih contraciual terms of the loan

s [ilore

Turnover s recogrnised at the ‘ar value of tre consideraten recaved for interner connectivity and ret
g k

iT serv'ces provided n the normal course of ousi

cand 15 showr net of VAT Turnover is recegri

Laced or the date tre service is provided

« House buliding

O

Turncver is recogrised on legal completior of the sao of prooerty. lard and commeraal spaces  Turmover

from housing association cortracts is recognised by reference o the va ue of wor< comp.etad as a
e

cropcrion of the twral contract value

Employes benefits

The Groug provides a range o ! Cincuding arrual bonus arangements, pad haaday

arrangerments and def~ea contniput

i. Short-term benefits
Short- term benefits inc'ud ng nodday pay era other similar non-maonetary benefts are recogrised as ar

axperse r iqe cencdin whe VIZE 8 recs vad,

ii. Defined contribution pension plan

A defned cortnbution plas s @ cendion paar unaer wh'ch the Group pays Pxad contrbuiors nto a3

separate ettty nce the conrinuions rave oceen pa'a the Grougs has e further payment chigations

The conrioutions are recogrised as ar exgense when they are gue Amounts nat cad are shown in

accruas 17 the balance sheet Tre assets o tne plan are ~e.0 separaisy

o the Group in .naependently

admiristered furds
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Statement of accounting policies

iii. Share-based payments
Cash-settled share-based paymenrs are measured at faic value at the balance sheet date Tne Group
recognises a liability at the palance sheet cate basea on these fair values, taking nto accour: the estimated

&l

rumber of Jnits that wit actually vest and the carrent pronortion of the vesting peno
Changes ir the value of this liabuty are recogrised in the income statement.
The Group has no eguity-seliled arrangemaents

Finance costs

Finance costs are charged 1o the pront ard lass account over the ter of the debtusing the effective
interest metnod so that the amodnt charged s at 3 constant rate on the carrying amount 1§38 Costs are
initally recognised as a reducton in the proceeds of the assocated capital instrument and reeased to the

profit ard loss account over the term of the ekt

Lwrvent and deferred tay
TAX IS recs gmsed ir the statement of ncome and retained earrings, except that a chiange atinbutable 1o an
tern of INCoMme ana expenrse recogn:zed as othar comprehensive incomre cr to an item recoan sed directly
qu t)/ i5 aly’ recognised in other comprehensve rceme of directly recuity respectively

The currert ncome tax charge 1s calculaled on the basiz of tax rates and laws that have been eracted or
substaritivety enacted by the baance sheet date i1 the countries where the Compary operstes angd
generates incorre.
Deferred balances are recognised -n respect of alf trming differences that nave onamated but not reversed
by the Balance sheet dare, excepr that:

-

The recognitior of deferred fax assets is lmited o the extent that it 15 probable tnat they wil. be recovered
azainst the reversal of deferred tax hahiities or other future taxable croﬁ s, and

+ Any deferrec tax balances are reversed If and when all conditions for reiaining asscciated tax altowanceas
have been met

Deerred tax balances are ot recogrused in respect of perrnanent differences except n respect of business

rmbinations, when deferred tax is recognised on the differences between the farr vaiues of assets acquired
aﬂd the futLre tax deductions avalanle for them and tme differences petwee the fair values of lapitities
acquiren and the amaourt that wll be assessed for tax. Deferres tax 15 determined using tax rates and laws
that have Ceen enacted or substantively énacted by the batance sheel date.

Business combinations and goodhwiil
Business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method

The cost of 2 business combinauor s the far value of the cons.deration given, liabuities incurred or
assumed and the equ.*\ nsy

inai
rumerts issued plus the costs directly atiributable to the pusiness combinalion.
Yhere control is achieved in st

ages the cost s the consideration at the date of each transacton

On accuisition of a business, fair values are attributed to the identifiab.e assets, liaputies and contingent
liabilities unless the fair value carnot be measured reliably, in which case the alue is incorporated as
easured they are d'sclosed

codwil,. Where the fair vaiue of contngent lak:lit.es cannot be relia bty

an the came basis as other contingent tabilities.
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Statement of accounting policies

Goodwil recogrized represerts the excess of tne ‘ar value and directly atiributaile costs of the purchase

consideraticn ovar the fair values 1o the Troup's irter
contrgen: liaoilities acguired.

i the gentfabe ret assets, tzbilites and

On acquishon, goodw s allecated 1o cash-generaung units (CGJ'ST that are expected w0 beneht frorm
tne compiraton

Goodw'il is amortised over its expected usefui *e which s determirec nased on :he esticnatec Ifespan of

5
the assets acquired. Where the Gro.wp 1s unatle 10 make a relable estimate of useful tife, gooowiliis
amortised over a period not exceeoing ten years Geodwillis rev ewea ano assessed for mgainment

indicators on an annuat basis and any impairment s charged o the oroft and loss.

Tangible fined asvetls

Tangib.e Sxad gseets are stated at cost less deprec at or. Depreciation s provided at rates calculated 1o wrire
| f

off the cost of fixed assets 1ess tneir estinrated resicual value, over thelr expectac useful ives Deprecizion
corrmences from the date an asset 1s orought into service Lang and a:sets 10 the course of const-uction
are not decreciated The estmated usefu. ives are as folows
?/ o
3‘7 tr“- 4

Assets 1 the course of construction are stated at cost. These gssets are not deprenizied unhl they are
avatabie for use
Wrare faciors, such as technological advancement or chamges inrarkel or oo, incicate that residual value

e

or useful hfe have ¢ ﬂE&ﬂJE" the resicual vaide, useful ife or deorcoation rate are amended prossectively to
reftect the new croumstances. The assers are reviewed for impa rmertif the above faciors ndicate that the
carrying amourt may oe \mp:—:\red

(Gains and losses on dlspasals are deterrined by comparng the groceeds with {ne carry ng amount and are

recognised withir profit or (2

intangible assets

Intargible assets are stated at cost less accuamulated amoiisation andg accumulated imoar™ment Losses
Amaorisation s calzulated, usirg the straight-one metncd, 10 allocate the depreciable amaount of the ascets

to ther res dual values over ther ectirmated asefu. hives, as follows

T
=
=
O
S
a7
=

1o expenseas are nciuded

Develonrmert nghts relale to plann rg consent to bur o a solar farr and g wnd "a7m 3CaLIred 07 acgquisiion,
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Statement of accounting policies

Where factors, sucn as charges ir market price, wdicae that residual value or useful ife have changed, the
residual value, useful ife or amortisation rate are amended praspecively 1o reflect the riew circumstances
The assets are reviewsd for impairment if the above factors ndicate that the carrying amount may

be impaireq

Leases

O use assels, [ne assassment considers

Alincephion tne Group assesses agreements that transfer the ngnt a
ermert is. or contans, a lease based on tne substance of tne arrangemen: and wirether
the lease should be classified as either a finance igase or ar: aperating lease

Leases of assets that trarsfer sulbstartizlly alt the risks and rewards mncidental 1o ownersh’p are class.fied as
firance leases. Fimance eases are cacitalised at the commencemant of the lease at ine fair valug of the
{

C
leased asset and geprec ated over tha shorter of tre lease term and trne astmated usetul life of the asset

Aszers are assessed for impairment at eacn reporting date
Leases that do not transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership are classifise as operaing eases.
Payrents Lndar operalng eases are charged o the proft ang 1Css account on a straight-ung nasis over the

inveztments

The Cormpary kolds irvestments in a subsid.ary at cost less accumulated impairrrent losses If an
rnpairment 1oss s subseguently reversed, the carrying amount of the irvestment is increases 1 the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the revised carry'rg amownt does not exceed
the carrying amount that would fave been determined had no impairment .0ss been recognised in pror
periods A reversal of anaimpairment loss is recognised in the proht and 0ss account,

Lash

Casrirciudes cashin hand and depaosits rrApa/ab cn dernang Restricted cash represarts cash for which
the Grouo does not have immediate and direct ac r for which regulatory or legal reguirements restric
the use of the cash.

Stocks

Raw rraterials, spare parts and corsumables are valued at the lower of cost and net reablisabie vaiue Where
necessary, a provision is made for obsalete, slow-maoving and defective stock. Costis determined on the
firzt-"n. first-out (FIFC) method.

Fuel stocks (MBM and iitter} are valued on an average cost bass over one o two months and provision for
Lnusabie litter 1s reviewed mor thiy ard apphies (o off-site stock

Fuel stock o straw has beer valued at the historical cost per tenne of straw A provision for unusabe straw
isadentiied on an individaal stack pasis and is reviewed monthly Stocks are used on a firstin, first out

{"FIFO") basis by age of staw
Stocks of ash at Flbrophos are vaiued at the lower of cost and net realisable value to the Grouo.

Stocks of property deveiopment work in progress ("WIP7) are stated at the lower of cost and net realisanle
value. Cost cornprises direct materals and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that
kave besn incurred in bring:ing the stocks to ther present locations and condition
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Statement of accounting policies

At each reporting date, an assessment is mades {or imparment Any excess of the carrying amourt of
ss omaolete and sell ig recagnised as an mpanment logs
through the profit and less account. Reversale of imnairment iosses are also recogn sed in the profit and

e

stocks over its estirmated seitng price te

loss account.

Accrued Incoms

&

Accrued iccome on lcans is calzulated at the rate of interest sel out 15 the ‘oan contracis Energy income s
accrued over the pericd Inwhicr it ras been generated,

-~

Ceferrad income 1s recognised in accordance win the terms set oLt in the contact Defarred income s
released to e profit and loss account in the perca to which it relates

Financial instruments

The Group has chosen to adopt Sect ons 12 anc 12 of FRS 102 12 respect of financial nstruments.

dasic fnancial ass nclod ng trade and oiber receivab.ez and cash and bank talarces are indially

recognised at rancact on price, uniess the arrangemsant consttutes & firzncing transachion, where the

fransaction 15 measu-ed at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a marke: rate of nerest
ar

Such assers are ubcequently carried at amortised cost Laing tre effective rierest metrod

ssassed for obj

>

i\t the end of each reporting per.ca Ainancial aszeis measared at amort sed cost are

da
evidence of impairment If g~ asset s impaiced the mpairmert foss 1s the difference petween the carying
armount and the present value of the estimateg cash flows discounted at the asset's origral #fecive interest

rate Tne imnarment o515 recognised in profit or ioss

Dtner fnancial ass Teuding nvestmants n eguity instiruments whicr are net sSUSSICIanes, asionates or

ont veniures, are nualy measured at far value, which s normally the transacuor price Such assets are
j B2

W)

suosequem;ly carmed ar far value and the changes 0 far vaide ase recogmised ir profit or loss, excent that

investrnents N equity instrurments that are not puchcly traded and whose fair values cannot bhe meas..red

rel-atly are measuraed at cost less ‘mpainment,

Fnancial assets are derecogn sed when (@) the contractual nghis to the cash flows from tne asset expire or
are settlea, or {b) substantially al tre risks ang rewargs oF t7e owrership of the assel are rars’ened to

ty or (2 cantre: of The asset nas beem transferred to anctrer party who nas the oractical ab ity
to milaleraiiy sell the asiet to an unre.ared trd party without impesng additonrat resinclions

Finanelal liabilities

fon I ' ~ ~ e
C.owW SloUp Lo pernies

Basic Francal uaniines, imciad ng trace and other payaoies,
b
d

anc pfe%rerfe shares, at transacuon orice, less te arrangernent constitutes a

ot}

s *\%l/"“”rﬂ-‘SE

francrg transact on, winere e deot naframeant 1S rreasures uidre rece’pls

discounted at @ market rate of interest
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Statement of accounting policies

Debt instrurtents are subsequertly caried at amortized cos:, Jsing the eflectve interest rate method. Fees
paid or the establiskmert of loan facities are recognised as transact on costs of the woan to the extent that
s prosable that zome or all of the facility will be drawn aown. In this case, the fee is deferred untl the
draw-down occurs To the extent tnere 15 no aevidence that 1115 probable that some or all of the facility wiil
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payrnent for aguidity services and amortised over the perod
.‘:he faciiity 1o wh ch it reiates

Trade pavables are onigations O pay for goods or services that have been acguirad . the o dinary course

of Business from Supohers, Accounts cayatle are clas.&uﬁeo as current liabilities if payment 1s due withim one

vear o7 less if not, they are presented as non-current Lizbilities. Trace gayables are recognised initially at
ey

trarszacion price and subseguently meazured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabitties are derecogn'sed wher the Lability is extinguisned, tqat 5 wnen the contractual cbl'gation
is dizcharged, cancelied or expires,
Provisions

Frovisiors are made whgre or event Nas taken place tzt gives the Group a 2gal or corstructive obligation

hizt probab .y requires settlerent by a transfer of economic benefit, and 2 reiiab.e estmate can be made of
the amount of tne bligation

Provis:or:s are crarged as an expense to the profit and loss accodnt in tne year that the Groug becomes
aware of oblgaticn, ang are measured al the best est'mate at the balance sheet date oF e expenditure
required to settle the cii'gation, ta<ing into account reievant risks and uncertainties

Hadging

The Grouo applies hedge accountng far transact.ons entered Into to manage the cash fiow exposures of
borrowings Interest rate swaps are held ty manage the irterest rate exposures ang are designated as cash
flow hedges of flozting rate borrowings Changes in the ‘air values of dervatives designated as cash fiow

Redges, ard wnick are effective, are recogrised directiy in eguiy. Any inefectivensss in the redgin

le}

relationship loeing the excess of the cumulative change in farr valug of the Fadgng instrument since
incepuon of the hedge over the cumuiative change in the fair value of the hedged tem =ince -nception of
the nedge} is recogrized in the profit and loss.

The gam or loss rec og sed in other comprehenzive income s reclassihaed to tre proft and loss in
accordance with the fiows of the hedged item Hedge accounting is discontinued wren the hedging
nstrument expires, o longer meets the hedging cnteria, the forecast transacuon s no lorger highly
prokante, the hedged debt instrument is derecegnised ¢r tne hadging nstrurment is terrinated

Share capital
Ordinary smares issued by tne Group are recoen sed in eguity 3t the value of the proceeds receved, with the
excess over nominal valug being credded te snare premium

Mon-controlling interasts

ﬂ\
—
-
0]

Non-conraling interests are measured at their proportionate share acquree's dentiiable net aszets

at the date of acguisition.
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Hev accounting judgemaents and estimates
ancial staterments i cornpliarce with RS 102 requin

fcertan critcal
estirnates |t also requires managenr ent to exercise jLdgement in appiy'ng the Company's

accounting potcies Estmates and judgements are centinually evaiuatad and are tased on histonca.

expenence and omner factors, including expectations of future events that are believed 0 2e reasonacls

under the circumstarces The key estimates and judgemearts in gresanng thiese financial staterents are.

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers {estimate)

cans and advances to custormers, ncluding associaed accrued income balances, are reviewed for
Impairment on a guarterly basis In consided~g the need for a provis:on, management detenmire ther pes:
estmate of the expected future caz~ flows ona ¢

numiper of assurmptions about future events which may difer from acius! cutcomes, inciLaing the

ase by case Dasis, As ths estimale relies o a certain

orrowes’s abhity to repay interest ana capital dug in future per ods, this gives nige to iudgermnent as to
whether there 1s a shortfall between the carrying value and the farr value of the delbior balance
Menagement ncte that provisions aganst .oent ard advances s

vity analys:s on the pre
of +/- one per centin the amount provided agamst the eztimated palance af nsk would

chang

have resulted i

sion Treresuls of th

corformed e

£3 6m tess/more expenditure peirg charged 1o tre income Wwcurng the oencd. See note 13 for the

s
carrying amount of the debtors ard provisicns at 20 June 2022

Value of property development work in progress ('WIP') (estlmate)
reperty developmaent WIP is revigwed for impairm

'U

o a per.ocic basis In cons'denng the need for a
provision, maragement determine ther pest estimate of tne recoverabie value Managerrent engage ar
expert extzrnal valuzr 1o provice Key azsurmplions abed: fulure everits whinch may differ from aciual
outcomes. inciuding proparty valualons, rate of sales ard deve coment cos's

These estim:
fair value of the balance as at the 30 June 2022 Post year end, managerent have reviewed the

Se 0 iudf'eme.'“t as ¢ wather tner= 1s a shortfad petween the carryir.a vawe and the

assumiptions u *c cetermine the value of property deveioorrent WIF and have obierved no changes in
perfomﬂanc:e :haT. wold impact the valuator as at the 30 Sune 2022 See note 12 for the carrymg amount
of tne property developmert WIE,

jii. Purchase price agreement (Australian entities) (judgement)

Tne Group owns two epergy gereratng sabsidiaries i Ausiralia which kave entared inte purchase price
agreements (FPA<HIn 2019 ard 2021, Tne PPAs inciude a contract ior differences "C'D" whereby the
sucsiciares pay/rece've armounts from the customer based on the diferences betwsen a fixed seling prce
and the actual price for elecincity solc to tne Australian er‘erq-/ rmarket. The direc

outsice the szope of
such arrangements

variable corsieralon,

iv. Business combinations {estimate)

The cost of 2 pusiness combinglion s the far vaie of the consideratior gven, wabilites ircorrad olus the
costs directy attnibutasle 10 the business combimation Far value of these Fofnb:natiom 5 3 key estimate
and more details are provided on pages 45 10 46,
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v. Decommissioning provision {estimate)

The provis.on for decommissicning costs 15 measured at ranagemen:'s best estimate of tne present value
of the experditure regurred to settle the future obligation to return fand on whicn thiere are operatioral wind
and solar farms, to its ariginat condiven. The evel of the provisions is determined 1o g significant degree by
the estimat on of future disrnantling and restoration costs, as weil as tha itming of dismantlement,

Wind Farms {estimate):
Maragerrent note that cecomrnistioning provisions IS a criticat esumate and have therefore performed
ensitivity aralysis, The resulls of the sensitivity aralysis conclude that a charge of +/- one per centin the
diccount rate would have resultad in £2 1 incraase/decraase in the provisien See nore 17 for the provizicon
recognised at 30 June 2022 Management utlize exiernal expertise to provide an est

rnated Cost o
dismantle and have uses a discount rate of 2% 1o reflect the trme i value of money and

the risks spec
to the oohgaton.

Australian sotar farms (judgement}:

The Grodp s reawired o restore the leased prerises of the sclar farm o ther ongiral condidion at the end
of the lease terrm A provizion was previously recagnised, however in the currert year this judgement has
peen reazseszed and management believe the essar may wisk ta eitner take uile of the aszets for edher
contnusd use or to realise vaile through selling the assets ard as such do not believe that ar cutilow

probable t© sethe this restoration obugaticn.

UK Solar (estimate):
Dunng tne year, a trura oarty perf@rmed an assassmernt of the baze onst of the decommssioning of ne
Croups UK sclar farms The findings h
orovision has beer recegrised for

she

ave resulted N material crange in the cost estmate and therefore 3
ﬁ ttime on same sites Tha impzact has resulied
sed for £18mr 1o the balanc

et decommissioning hawility and fixed assets As at 3“ Jure 2!22 there g
na mpact on the profit and loss. Sites not &

affectad are addrescted heiow

o

UK and French Solar {judgment}:

Maragement believe that given the nature of these particuiar assets, the lessor may wish to either take ticle
cf the assets for either continued use or to reacse value through selling the assets ard as such do not
oelieve that an cutflow s probaile to settie this restorator chligation Managemenrt will continde to monitor
the siwwaton at each balance sheet date

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments (estimate)

The value of goodwil neld by the Group and investments 0 subsidiary undertakings held by the Compary
s reviewed anndally forimgasment. 7 he recoverability of these ba.ances is corsidered with refererce (o the
present vatue of the estimated future cash flows Thase caiculat ons use cash flow projectians whicr extend
forward forecast business performance together with assumptions susrounding the expectea lfe of the
asset, externaly prepared forecasts and valuations, and any agjusiments reguired to the discount rate to take
account of business risk The estimated present vatiie of these future cash flows is sersitive 1o e dizcourt
rate and growth rate used in the calculation, all of whch reguire management's judgement “esting of the
carrying value hias been perforrmred during the year, wnich has involved severa: scenarios being modelied
Based o this tesong and the resulting impairment recognised on nvesiments, managemesnt believes there

s sufficient headrcorr to sugport the value of gocdwili and investmentis in subsidiary ertities.

Management note that impairment of goodwll and invesimerts is a cntical est/imate and have therefore

al
performed sensiivity analysis on the provision. The results of the senstivty analysis conclude that 2 charge

of +/- cre per centin the amaount provded agaims: the estimated balance at risk would nave resulted in
£5 43m less/more expenditure being charged to the incorme statement during the penod See note 8 for

the carrying amounrt of the goodwil 2nd nvestments at 30 June 2022
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
i
Analysis of turnover by category

2022
£°000

42,404

NCNS — SOLAN recerve DOWEr N wiie 365,958

Energy oo
Energy operatons — omass and landAall 223,526
teathcare ooarations 453978
Hone tu-rding 25,034
8,930

Fitire operatons
711,830

o twmmatuzan wends % BARGGHERL BONKCEEE TFERY 2 0 % Y v s u Ll megaasnsAssssmmeshaseemdaiiiguoheh s she hohe W L ve

179,820
141 826
42,266
4,828
425,302

Incuded it ncornme fromn Heslthoare oper
and £28 6m 2021 £731 1) in relat on 1o 3=

Analysis of turnover by geography

2022
£000

603,911
Lircpe 84,433

Urited Kin

Fest of waor

711,830

23,486

021 £11.2rm reoating to tne cale of retrerrent vidage writs,

2021
£000
T384799
31,892
8,610
425307

Other income

2022
£'000

2021
£000

3,550

G.454
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24

Thiz 15 stated after charging/{credivng):
(restated)
2022 2021
£'000 €000

Sum vuvsamr m oa m ae wae, W s suu e e EeRAT LG wABRN T 0 AHTRH AT E w s Bew 3 ao

Armorts,

ahon of intangibic asscis ncte 8) 37,849 20704
mparment of ntangibie assets inote 8] 7,913 -
Depreciation of langivle assets (note 9] 101,802 846597

Auditors romureration - Compary and thie Group's consolidated

financ-al statements

jee}

45 146

Audiiors rerureration  aucit of Company's sutsidanes 819 1134
Audiors rerrureralicn — RoN-aucit Services 246 513
ALdizors rercuncrahion - tax cormprance sarviceas 482 672
Oifference on foreign exchance 7.772 4402

Ciperating iease rerals 13,783 7502

Note 26 detais the prior pernod ad ustments,

oo oo

2022 2021
£000 €000
85,432 41,383
7.041 2,809
3,253 1676
95706 46268

The Group provides & defined contrbution schemes for its empiovees in the UK. The amount <ecognised as
ar expense for tne definred contrbution scheme is shown in the table above

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2022 2021
Number o M[\Jumbecw
= oucion 1,052 699
Adrmirsstration 631 348
3 3

1,666 1,050

The Compary had one errployee cther than Zirectors dunng ine penca ended 30 June 2022 (2021, nonel
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e T IR

2022 2021
£°000 £000

sastinass. . BERERAD L8 LSRG BREEE AL D O CRORTTRAE 20 EEOHE S VERETRAIR A B VY BHD R BRANRY U LERbb A T b e bbbk ymt o das DS b v bk b o

Emoluments 176 163

Dur ng the year no penson contributions were madse in respect of the drectors (2021 none)

The Group nas no other key managemeart 2021 none

oo

A numbper es of the Group operate a cash-setled LTiP w gaal fying employees, wnereby
emoloyces render Services n excharge for cash, tie amourt of whicr is determined oy reference to the
valLai.on of the underying subsidary The far vaiue of tre liapiity for the awards made i measured at each
reporirg date and at the settlerent date T1eé far vaue § r2cogruses over the vestng perod The arroant
ense recogniced takes into accoun: e best avalabue esiimate of the nurnper 27 Lntg

Zinons underlying each award granted

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

2022 2021

Number of MNurrber of
awards vards

Qppmr‘g (ol tdtandsr‘.a 1,914,751 1, n4O OO“
C qrur tt_u uur G t“*uc oeriod 1,763,563 274751
Closmg outstandmg balance 3,678,314 1,514,751

Tre total charge ff the year was 3,132,000 (20210 £1.334,0G0; and &t the 30 June 2022 there was 3
o
Bility of £2,407.000 inciuded with n credtors greater than one year (20210 21,334,000

o

& -

interest receivable and similar income 2022 2021
e, EROOEDOO

oes 130 897

Irizrest o0 bank b:nc)

Interest payable and similar expenses 2022 2021

- e oamena e b b o oses s e wmmma w e w e w - S B . . Cew e e s e vy - Elooo Cesmew wowow - COODW
interest on bark Eorowngs 32,192 34378
Arcorizsanon oF ssue Cosks or pank borrdwangs 2,597 1,103

(Pron/loss o7 Jany

& ’“r"mr'la INsframearts {1,235) 587
33,554 36,068
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? R

a) Analysis of charge in year

R B L TOE T AE TN R

Current tax:
UK corporation tax charge on profit/loss for the year

AGUSIMENLS In respect Of prior perods

Foreign rax sJf o

Total current tax charge/icredi)

5.641

8,540

{restated)
2021

1648
(2.856)

e EO00

1.218)

Deferred tax:
Ongeation and roversal of iming differences
Adjusiments ir respect of priar percocs

Effect of change intax raes

6,227
{3,741)

Totai doferred tax

7.754

5268

2,074
(3.998)
11491

9567

Tax charge on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities 16,294 8.349

b} Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The tax assesseq for the yvear @ migher (2021 Fugher than the standard rate of corporat.on tax .n the UK of
19% (2021 19%) The differences are explaned beow

{restated)
2022 2021

£000 E£'00D

v wuase SRR e 4 R e S AU oS b B B FT T D B B BB D LD

47,604 (21,170)

Profit/{loss) before tax

Profitflioss) before tax muitislied by standard rate of

corst;r;ioiwb!ax i rffe LJKJO£ 15% :’)EJIO;O T;%d\ ’ 9,045 4022
Effecrs of.

Cxpenses rot deductible for tax purposes 11,723 16,076
Other effiocts (868) 1022
Incerne Not taxable for tax purposes {8,102} {9,351
Adjustrrants in respect of prior penads (545) (£.865)
Effects of charige i tax rates 5,041 11489
Totaltax charge for theyear 16294 8349

c) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Finance Act 2021 enacted on 10 June 2021 increased the rmain rate of UK corporation tax frorn 19% to
25%, effective 1 April 2023 Deferrec taxes an the halance sheet have been measured at 25% (2021, 25%)
wrich regresents the fulure corporation tax rate that was enacted at the balance sheet date.

Mote 26 details the prior period adjustments,
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8

Software Goodwill Development Totat
{restated) rights

Group . £000  EO0 £000 £000
e G PR e S 3 SRS S 8 S A s S sert a4 e kS ) oSSR A PN B i TS
At 1 Suly 2021 (restatost 964 726,602 10,216 737,782
Acquired through business - 30,042 4058 34,100
combinaions o 2/7)
Additions 2.125 - 1,040 3,165
Disposals - (21,118) - (21,118)
Can en tanslation - 7930 - 7930

At30June2022 3089 743456 15314 761,859
Accumulated amortisation

AL iy 2021 restaredd:; 107 155,902 1034 161,043

Cisposals - (2,462) - (2.462)
Loss o7 ranslaton (192) - 1192)
Irrpalrreernr - 7,913 - 7913
Char'c‘e of the year 12 :S 7514 LBBJ o 57 849

At 30 June 2022 _ o 19 202475 1557 204,151

Net book value
At 30 June 2022 N 2,970 540,981 13,757 , 55?.708

At 50 Jurw 23 2 restated: 857 566,700 9,182

The gain on tra~slation of foreign curency cencominated goodwll s recognised in otner cormprenensive
income Arrortizetion of goodwili is charged o adminisrat on costs,

Cetails of the subs diaries scouured aunng the year endeq 30 June 2022 can be found in note 27,

Burng the year the grouo dsposed of 2 wne farms in Finland, as a result £2 5m of accamulated goodwil

ac
amortisat oy was recogrised in the current year and £29 3r of gooaw | was realised on the sale. Gain on

-

sale recognised in the profit and .05 i refanon ¢ this transaction was £287

Impairmert of £73m has been recoar sed on goocawill (2021 ronel
Mo assets nave oeen pledged as secur by for latlies at year end 12022 none).
The Company had no intangikle assets a1 30 Jure 2022 {2027 nore!

saote 26 details the orior period ad,ustmenis
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Land and Power Plant and Network  Assets under Totat

buildings stations machinery assets construction (restated)

(restated)

Group _ £000 £'000 £'000 000  E£'000
Coshtéw e e 8 e € e R LT o SRS ARG 1€
At tduy 2021 restated! 8.531 317467 16954357 27288 43,277 2,092,000
Additonz 829 1536 73.e47 60462 238,005 374,480
Eerbmaone oo 2 1308 - 51,344 - 57,663 110,315
FX{f3ir vaiue rmovernent - - 368 - 3.294 1662
Tramsfers - 68 1,066 30936 (32.073) -
D‘s;:. K (‘ z5) - {75.951) - - (76 088)
A‘l 30 June 2022 o o 10 533 319,071 o Mi,745,91.'ll.“ o 118,585 o 310,170 * 2 504 571* A
Accumulated dep;ecaatlon o S S
AvlJay 2021 4410 90,052 414,559 1290 - 510,318
Crarge o the ye 192 17130 81,141 3,348 - 101802
Discosais - - (182) (221} - {(403)
F¥ moverners - - {776] - - {776)
At 30 June 2022 4,593 167,189 ‘49‘4'74'2 o 4.417 - -516,941
Mo pog e e s } o T LT
At 30 June 2022 5,940 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310,170 1,893,430
A? 20 Jlr‘egCA “('eS'\at!‘:ﬂ) o 4,121 227408 1,280,878 ‘ 25,958 A5,277 ‘ 1,581,682

included within tangible assets are capitaiised hinance costs directly attnbutabie t© bringing the asset into
use. The net carrying amount of assets held under Grance leases inc.uded n plart, machnery, fixtures and
fittings is £51,785,000 (2021 £51.534.000 ) included in network assets is & prov sion of £1,025,000 for |
oosolete equipment and developmes

The Company rad no tangible assets at 30 June 2022 (2021 none}

ote 26 getals the onor penoa adjustments

|
;
i
H
|
H
|
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16 e

Unlisted

investments Total
Group S - E000 £000

Cost and net bouk va lue
At July 2021 11,000 11,000
Acdit-ons 129452 1258452
(105,000) {105,000)
35,452 35452
oo moo

Subsidiary
undertakings Total

Com‘pvavnyW o ) o ) ) o £’000 ) £ 0‘00
Cost T e et et = < a ¢ v S s e S e n e e n s tea e s e e s e et vmn e by R ¥ The b <etrres Aae P assnen eSS Airebe s T
At 30 Jure 2021 23116783 2,511,678
Additions 228,300 228,300

Accumulated |mpa:rments
AL 30 Jure 2021 155,312 195,312
Revarsal of imparments 195,312 (195.312)

\ mpa: rmpn‘: - -

At 30 June 2022 T e s s s s o R . -

Net book value
At 30 June 2022 2, 539 978 2,539,978

A '%'\ June 2071 2, 116 36F 2,116,366

2,539,978 2,539,978

Detals of related underizkings are shown « note 29

Urlsted inveziments comorise tne Group's hadirg of the members’ cagtal o Terido LLE a lerding
business, anc itz sherenclding in Bracke~ Trad g Limited Fere co-fourdec Terido LLP 10 Ccicber 2012 wit

the intertion of conducting @ proooruon Of I futare race through the parmmsmf Addit oris and disposals

of unusted rvestrents relae (o investimeniz and divestrents n Tergo L2 1r lire witn Ferr's cash

reguirery ents and o Lhihce surp.us funds. Ferm hias a sral!
trient it 3racken Trading Lmited a1 30 June 2022 was ENILC 20 June 2C21 Enl)

3
Tre drectors do not consider Terao LLF or 3rao«er Trart

Shareholan 1 Bracken Trading Limited from

o
s

tirne o ume. Term's inve

we subsdiary urderaki-gs of Fern
Trading Limitec
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Cash includes cash in nand and deposite repayab e o dermand.

Restricted cazh represents casn for waich the Group coes not fave immediate ard girect access o for
whicn requlatory or lega. reguirerients restrict the wse of the cash.

Group
2022 2021
_ \ e OO0 FLoy
caJrabln”ermnq A A A R 5 e e G 19582 3 Rp— 1:;141
Restricted cash €0,592 55,337

3
Cash at bank and in hand 256,415 172478

Restrictea cast s comprised of £726,000 held i Escrow and £53,866,000 of cash heid ir s.bsdiaries with

si-anral distnoutionr windows.
The Company nad a cash baance of £6,422.000 a5 at 35 June 2042, none of whicn wag rescted (2021

atelgi

id o

Group
2022 2021
£1000 £'000

Ashl stack N A S 1,538 2,195
FLet, spare pare and censdmables 26,023 18,593

Breyr,
T

156,918

75823
184,479

94,711

The amaunt of stocks recogrised as an expense dunng the year was £120,413.000 (2021 £41.212,000]

PR

Inciuded in the fuetl spare parts ang consumables stock value is a provision of £320.C00 for unusable fuel
stock (2021 ££59 0001 Inciuding 'n property development WIP s a provsion 0f £228.000 for warqanty and
site speciie provisions

There has Been no impairment recognised during the year o stock (2021 nonel Ne inventory has been

pledged as security for hapilues (2021 nonel.

The Company nad na siccks at 30 June 2022 (2021 nong)

Mw@%&
i e

e b
3
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Group Company
{restated)

2022 2021 2022

£000 £'000 £'000

B axdnben ket baned bebibedd e Bk et R XhSedxiaibh hanxdx 486

Amounts falling due after one year
Loans and advances 1o cusiomers 137,662 16,128 -
Amounts falling due within one year

Loans and advances o customaers 223,239 360,384 -
lrade debtors 42,050 16,121 392
Arsournts ovweerd oy related partes incle 243 - 3,950 32,950
Cther debtors 20,199 24,972 3,843
Coroaraton tax - £.603 2,527

Dervanve financial nstraments inate 22 54,409 6469 -
Bropaymenis ana aoored ncame 145,602 154,375 176

8
12,751

5.008

32,616
50,383

Loans and advances to customers are stated net of prov s oms of £13. 874000 (2021 £18.195 0001
Frepayents arid accrued noorme are states net of provisions of £7 739,000 120210 £13,741.0040]

No onterestis charged o armourts Svwed Oy group ardertakings, as the oJistianaing caiaraes are unsecurad

and repayabie on demard (2021 nonel.

MNote 26 detalls the prcr period agjustmensts
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
¥ TGRS B |
Group Company i

(restated) :

2022 2021 2022 2021 :

» £000 £000  E00  £000

Ban# [0ars and Cuerdrafts ncic 16) 87.732 Cames T
Trade crediiors 58,004 23,390 76 15 '
Orher taxator and social sec.unity 8,161 - - -
Otner creditors 24,362 55806 ' - - '
Amourts due 1o relaled parties inote 24] - - - 20,203 :
Frante eazes incte 16, 2,428 7147 - - ;
Dervat ve fnancias msruments (nome 21 - 143 - - .
Accria s and deferred income 75,465 72,087 373 2 70q
18 = o SRR :

Group ,
2022 2021 |
£000 £'000 :
R 363,070 247257
“rance leases note 16 5,899 €,125
Dervative financal mstruments {(note 279 - -
Other crediters 5 364 5415
Group
2022 2021
Amounts fall:ng due after more than fn(e years £°000 ) £000
;dnr’ loans and cverdfdfb Incte 16) T 573,416 - 57?,2354
Finance leases \ncte 19) 24,676 24,495
Dervative financial instrumrents {note 21) - 4? 77;
Total crecitors falling due af-te' moie then ore yc:ai* o 992;4725'; V 902,339

The Company has na creditors due in greater than cne year.

Amounts owed o related parties are unsecJured, non-interest beaning and repayable on dermrand

Mote 26 delails tne prior penied adjustments
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26 L on ool o s

2022 2021
Group £'000 £000

uuuuu S LIRSS SEpREREEGIVAY GXPXONC AU HSAFL E TR S WAHE €U0 v ke ne ww w v vev L nncaen @ Aerhrssh Geked s brSaenadtEEY @

Due in one year 87,732 47386
Due betwaen one and five yoars 383,070 247,297

Due m maore than fve years 573,416 577235

1,044,218 871,518

—
o
D
M
Q
S
]
ot
3

el
o
<]
[e}
]
Q
o
&%)
i)
S
a3}
"]
(53]
B
[
]
[
C
>3
D
)
2
)
M2

Interest rate 2022 2021
£000 £

Viners Frie 6 morth SONIA plus 1.60% 429,138 438,140
Cedar Erergy ard intrastriucture Limineg LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2.00% - -

3 month EURIBOR plus
1.20%, Fixed rate 1.70%

Elics Energy 2 12% + 6 month ELURIBOR 56,079 -
Boomerang Erergy Lam tad & rmonth SONIA plus 1.50% 284,348 245,344

549% (swap rate of 4.59% +
1.9% margin)

30,946 34595

Lhcs Energy 2

114,026 -

Dartingron Pont Solar Tarm Py Srnited
= ¥

Meltcn Renewatsle Energy UK Lirted & month SOMIA plus 2.35% 85,718 103,438
Dilacea WF Hoideo PTY Lrd 17% + BBSY 31,614 -

= =) -
Eiivia | -ormos Lamitea 5% + SONIA + 2 ')_/Q non 12,306 -
utilisation fee
Fixed rate 2.5% 43 -

zZ

R R L R T

1044218 871518

SON'A replacea LIBOR as the effectve imterbark lenzing rate system from 1 Jaruary 2022 The rate change
resulied in no comrnercal impacst o the business

Finance leases
Tre future mnimum fnance lease payments are as foliows

2022 2021

£000 E£'000

B I T L TR e . . f ek m s e E hE ok B R e waR v % m vRRiena wEREel st whebehetekvEaiE s shedy e pnnin s o v

Payrnerits due.

Notlater than one year 2,428 3166

Later than ONe year a1d Aot iater than five years 5,899 6,196

Later thar fve year 76,461 72.013

ot grose payrments 84,788 81,375
finarce cnarges {51,785) (47609}

W

Less

Carrying amount of the liability 33,003 33766

The finance leases pnmariy re.ate 10 2 leasad tul.cing and heait~care equ:pment Trere are no conungert
rerial renews! or purchase option cleuses. Fents cayanle '\ncrease by local int o

secured aganst tre leated aszels

Tre Compary had no finance leases at 30 June 2022
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27 o0 Low

Decommissioning (restated)

provision Deferred tax

SO €000 €000
At 1 July 202 20,435 20,833
ncrease recagrised n profit and (058 21 11,495
Increase recognised through oth er comproharnsive neorme - 18,202
Impsirrnent 16 -
Increase recogrised in Fred assets 23,656 -
Recocnsed on subs diary acquIsiicrs - (3.,568)
Adiustment in respect of prir years - (5465)
unwinong of alscount 248 -
Adiustmen!t relalirg t© change 1IN accountng esimate {(3.373) -
f;aln on transistion - 15 -
At 30 June 2022 41 023 41,597

G R AT

{restated)
Total

EENTE B S

The decomimissioning provision 1s held 1o

aperaticna. wing, biomass and solar far

dtinsed ‘or in excess of 25 years,
The Company had no provisions at 30 June 2022

hote 26 getails the prior geriod adjustments.

cover future

oiligation

B O N R T R S b SRR N LLITCEN

The Grouc ang Company have

Group
Allotted called-up anq fully pa|d

the following share capital

2022
£'000

g e

1616622011 (2021 1496755 ?”"

5 1o return land on which tnere are
ms, 1o the'r original condinon. The amourts are not expectec o be

2021
£000

E ey

Orginary shares of E0 10 each 161,662 149676
Company 2022 2021
Allotted, called-upand fullypaid £000 WE QOO
1616622 011 120 Q6. 755 258

1.616,622 011 (2021 1486,755,258] 161,662 149,676

Ordinary shares of £EC.10 each

During tne year the Croup issued 129,866,754 (2021 1
15

aggregate nominal vaiue of £11,987.000 (2021 £1

1,501,199.275 )

ordinary shares of £0.10 each for an
0.120,0081 Of the shares ssued during the year, total

consideration of £203,750,000 (2021 £2,316,695,000) was pad for the shiares, giving rise to a premium of
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£191763,C00 (2021 £173,118,000). Suring tas year the Group purcha
ordinary shares of EO 10 each with an agaregate nominat vaiue

ST [

of £nil (2021 £6,844,000) was paid for the shares, gwving rise to a

The Group has adopted predecessar accouning grinc.ples Lwas formed as part of rouD
i ag

reconsruction, therefore the share capita! and share prerm um account are treated asif they had zways

ex'sted Movements in share capital ansing both befare and afwer the resiructure are repartea as cmovements

in the Groug share capial.

During the year the Company ssued 119,866,754 (2021 2 501,199,278} ordinary shares of £0.17 each for an
02 5

aggregate rominat value of £11.987000 (2
onsideration of £203,750,000 (2021 £2, 316 695,000
E191,764,0GO (2021 £2, 16 575,000} Dur:m the year

3 OF tne shares 1ssued durning

the year, total

aid for the shares giving nse to a gramiurs of
curcnaszed mit 2021 4,444 0207 of t5 own

ordinary chares of £O.l eacn with an aggregate nomiral vaile of 2 (2021 £4244 G001 Tota! corsizeraton
of Enil (2021 £6.844 G00D) was pad for the shares, aiving rise to g premium of Erit (2021 £6, 399, JC)OF

63}
[s]
&3]
B
O
-
3]
w1
s
3
]
—
v'

nere |5 a singie ciass of ordinary shares. Tnere
renaymearnt of capital

Cash flow hedge reserve

G the ciztriputicn of dywvdends and the

Tre cash flow hedge reserve is wsed to record trarsaciions arlsing from the Group™ cash flow

Rredging arrangements.

Merger reserve
The merger reserve arises from the difference betwes

values of the subsicharies acau red

19

The movemert in no--cortroling rterests was as follows

i the fair value of the snares 1ssges and the book

Group

Note 20622 2021

£'000 E'000

Al Jaly 202 3721 9,570

Sale of subs-dhary urd c(*_ak ~gs and accdisition 27 _ (1842}

of non-costroaing inn

Tota! comprenansye 1oss atinburable 1o

of alEls frs& 5 L 5s attnburable o {6,622) (4007

tirg interests
30 Jure 2022 (2, 903,) 3721
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P

As at 30 June 2022 there were no conungencies acress the Group or Company.

24

Carrying amo rnd labilives

Group Company

restated)
2022 2021 2022 2021
Group £'000 £000 E'000 £000

I A A LB VRS B 9RA 83 AT AR PRI Srnr b n kB

Carrying amount of financial assets

ost 423,150 430556 4,235 17.767
ricd loss - 6459 - -
SWE 1McoIme 54,409 - - -

Debt inslrumrents measurec at amorised «

Measured a amaortised cost 1,126,163 956,384 76 16

Megsured at far vaws firough otner comprenensive incerme - 42772 - -
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Derivative financial instruments
Tre Grour's tnancial fsk management seeks to minimise the expesdre o rarket risk, credil risk, liguidity
and cash fi

Worisk, and energy market s«

a) Market risk
Energy market risk
The energy secior is exoeriencing signitcant

ere is a r sk that forecast evels of Income are
not achieved due 1o changes in wholesale en efgy prices, ol"f—ta<e COrtracts Of gQovernrment supsidies
ced ncome sireans within the

Changes in Geveriment policy, or regu

,
3
=

T
&
3
=
f'\
o
i
=
i
ey
<
T
4’>
<"
=
3
—
k1
Q
¥ >

group due tc additonal levies.

Currency risk
The Groun presents its cornsolidated francia statements in stering and conducts business in a number of
e

her currencies, princpally Euro ang Austra dollar. Conseguently. the Grous 5 expesed o foreign

exchahge sk oue to exchange rate movernents, which affect the Groun's ransactional expenses and the

translation of earring and net aszes of 1S non-

Transactional exposures

Tranzactiora. exposures arise from adminsirat ve and otner exgernse in cur

=

rthan the Group's

presentational currercy (Serling; The Group enters in o forward foreign exchnange coniracts and foraign

tat
excharge swaps o muagate the exchange rate risk for certan foreign currency Dayat es and receipts. The

forward currency contracis ard swaps are rreasured at fair value, which s determ ned using valuaion

vatives are the ‘orward

2 ohservable inputs T%e key nputs used in va'uing the de
excharge rates for GBPALD a~d GaRPEUR O- 30 Jume 2027 the fair vaue OF the foreign currency
contracte was an asset of £nii (2021, 6 A&,COO) and a haodity of Enil (2021 £145,200]

Translational exposures
Balance sheet transiaticnat expos.dres arise or consolidation on the retrarslation of the balarce sneet of

nohn-ster.ng operaticns into stening, the Group's presentat oral currency The evel of exposure s reviewad

[¥2)

by management a~d the potental foreign exchange rmovemert is within an accentable leve w and

NGt o acuvely

rerefore, tyzicaly, the Group's policy i«

Interest rate risk

The Group has exposure o fluctuations in imterest rares on is borrowings Where the Group enters ino

oorowing arracgarrents with fleaimg rate nterest, a swap arrangement s entered inta 1o it a portien ¢f

tke nterest in order to rmrtigate against anincresse in rierest rates. The portion of interest o e fixed g

assessec OV & Case by Cate 0ass !\Aarta-gefrem can elect whether 1o 1edge sccount for these

arrangements on ar indiv dual transaction bass and nave elected to apply Fedge account ng for nterest
£

me dzte

Q1

: swans are based on a pr ropa amount of tne lcar ‘aciity ard mature or the s
o culstanding nterest raie swags have a matunily ir excess of five years arg tae fair

value 1s inar asse” coston of £54.405 000 (2027 aatility ¢f 242 625 000

Price risk
The Grouo s a snore- to medium-term le~ger to the res dental groperly marxet. "o the extent ingltrere s

d
eterioraticn in the level 0° ho

d use orices that afecte tre propert es that the ~,roup’ oans are secured
against, thare s arnsk thattre G f
rature of the loans and the cons
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b) Credit risk
Custormer credit nisk is mitigated through the Group's credit contrel oolicies, which are in place o ensure
that our customers have an apgropnate cred thisiory and are rrontorec o7 an ongoing basis

¢) Liquidity risk

Liguigity rsk are rmanaged by ensunng that sufficient cash is ava'ladle © funa cortinding ard future operations:

Licudity fisk anses o bank lcars 1in place across the Group and is managed tnrough careful morionng oF
coverants and sens.ble ‘evels of depbt. Borrowing 1s on a long-term basis, whereas our revenue 's received
tarcughout the year, as well az interest and redempticrs on our short-term ioan koo« Cash fiow sk is
managed througn orgoing cash flow forecasting to ensure receipts are sufficient to meet taklities as they
fall aue

B2 L0 e Dot L e

At the year eng the Group had capia: cormitments ac fisilows

2022 2021
Group e EOOO‘ ‘
for Dus 347,254
Undrawr 3 173,600 92 683

At 30 June the Grouc hace total future minimurr lease payrments ander nor-cancellakle operating teases
as ‘ollows,
2022 2021
Land and Other Land and Other
buildings buldings
‘ B i E'OOO £'000 £°000 £000
Paymers due
Mot iater than cne year 8,707 661 8021 749
Later than one year and not later than five 31,627 726 30,3659 1,686
years
Later than five yoars 95,664 - 118,537 9
135,998 1 387 157332 2,444

The Group had no otner off-balance sheer arrangements {2021 nonel

Under sections 3244 and 475A ¢f the Companies Act 2006, the parent company Ferr Trading Lirmited nas
guarameed a'l cutstanding liabilities o those compa~ies taking the exemgtion 1o witich the subsidiaries list
on pages 7% o 90 were subject to at tne 30 June 2022 unt! tney are satished in full. These liabilities wotal
F915m. Such guarantess are enforceaste against Fern Trading Limited oy any person o whom any such
iiabiiity 1= due,

The Company had no capitat or other commitments at 35 June 2022
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B [ o~ U . N - M
2% > : . : :

On 11 Juty 2022, Fern Trading Develogment Limeed (FTOL), & subaidiary of the Group, successiolly sold

d i b f ¥
Dariingten ot Eoldoe Pty Limited o Octopas Australiz Master Trust, A smail prefi of £850,C00 was mads
on the sale

Iateie]

Cn the 1st of December 2022, the Group acauired ri
5 from Trree UK, via

maobile virtual network operacr.

)
=
=
[¥2]
+
o
al
a8
o
e
\
<
Q
[
5
o
[
M
w
3
o
—
J
(‘\
=
i
o]
<
A
D

Strategic Connectivity Agreememt, us making the first siep towaras

g
£

Uncer FRS 1 necd not be aiven of transactions entered nto betwear two or mare
mempers of a Grous, provided that any subs-clary winich 1s a carty to the rarsacien s wholy owread oy

such a member

Curng e year, fees of 534 0002021 £62.154,00C; were charged o t

investmenis Lired, 2 relatec party due 10 its signfcant influence cver the entity Octopus Invesiments

Limited was recrarged legat and professiona. fecs totaling £15,155 (2021, 216.000) by tre Group. At The
vear end, an emount of £5,500 2021, £215

000 was cutstand ng wh ch s incuded i trade crediors

The Group s ertitied to a proft share as a result of itz nvestment in Terdo 1= 2 re ated party due o key
maragarnent persoronel N cormaor. (o 20022 a snare of preht equal to £5,242,000 (2021 £442000) nas
beear recogrnised by the Group At tne year end, the Croup nas an interest ir the Tember's ca‘ oital cf

T35452,0C0 (20210 £11.007,000) and acoruad income due of £5,276 000 (2021 £473,000

The Group ergages in lendirg actvities which include balances provides w0 reates paties. Regard'rg

224 000 accrued

entines wilh <ey managerment porsonnel :in commeor, loans of ©63.490.000 (2021 £173,
o
\,

Z
income of 15,7585 000 (2021 £26,202.000) ard deferred income of £l (2021 £101 000} were oJtsta

at year enc During e year nierest ncome of £7.60.000 (2027 £17 5810001 anc fees of £354, 000 (2(
£535,000) were rccognised in realon to trese leans

Durng ine year the Gro

u ured 9 rescryn power cornoanies from coempanies managed b
Investmenis Umiied, 2 relatea party See mote 27 al for detsiis of the comparies acquired

Az at 30 June 2022 tnil (202 50,275) was owed o the Compary by Bracker Tradrg Umted, a related
ras

ro
,) ~h
7 kO

party by key ma etin common

Cther than tre rarsactions disclosed apove, tre Comoany's other reiated pariy tra~sactions were with i1s

—

whaoly owned subzidiary members of the Grouo

25

I the ooirion of the cireciors, triere i3 NG dliMmae Ccotro.ang Darty or carent company




4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 20

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

26 > o

S

a) Group structuring review
We nave conducted a review of prior years accountng treatment of mercompany resructunng e this

JUNE 2027

review management identified unamortsed goodwill balances nrelaton to these transactions. We have
adjLsied the previous years to reflect the implementanon of amortisat.on backdated o whan the relevant

transactions occurred Tre accumulated irnpact for the goodwil armortisation i the profit and toss for 20220

was £8n (2020 £

nubers A summary of tne impact of the correcthion is provided below.

A

5 2 the movement of £2.7m has been restateq throughout the 2021 comparative

Year ended Adjustments Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)

Group o - £000 £'000 £'000

Goodwill 5830988 (5,235] 578,653
Retared edrnings 41185 5,335 46,520
Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)

) e £000 £'000 - £'000

Goodwill 602,711 (8.04%9) 594,662
Retained earnings (123920) 8,049 {115,871}

As part of the review of the intergroup restructur.ng mentoned above, maragement igentfies one of the

resiructures had been incorrectly sccounted for in a sub secuon of the group. No further errors were

discovered in the review, Tne accumulated imgact for goodwill amortisation in the profit and io

=5 for 2021

was £2.5m (2020, £1.3m), the movement of £1.2m has been restated throughout the 2021 comparative
numbers This 'mpact to the 2020 cpening retained earnings was offset by L2 1m written back against bad

debt expenses Management have corractec the identifed error with the foiowing imoact.

Year ended Adjustments Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)

Group ) £000 £000 E'OOQ
Goncwik 583988 (29.183) 554,805
Retaired earnings 41,185 8289 42 084
Lebtors 842 549 {(2.724) 835,825
Credizors amounts falling due within one year {232,813) 486 (232,317}
Fixred assots 1,346,655 30,512 1.377.167
Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30June 2021
{as stated) (restated}

Group £000 £000 £000
o oo i ernmean B . s 602?1; s (2“7’,96‘3;%“& P
Retained earnings (123.920) (321} (124,241}
Debtors 600,726 (2724} 588,002
Creditors armourts falling due within one year (207.318) 456 (206,822)
Fized assets 1,551,170 30,512 1,581687
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b) Deferred tax adjustment

Wae have conducted a review of all consolidation entries at subsections of the group We have identifed an
error relating 0 2019 when deferred tax adjustmerts ware entered as a consolidation entry and kad
subsequently not bean reversed. We have checked e tax per subsidiary account anc have ensured that the
relevant balances are correct. The error was posted at a conzobdated level only and has now been corrected

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) {restated)

Group £'000 £000 £000

b mne wadad ke m nan haha b f et fmhadidn Hxkhh behabSimbotibit din Bk £hdakh ARERRmha . Sratant

Retamed earmirgs 41,185 4.764) 36421

Creditors amounts faling due witnin one year (252,813} 4,764 (228,049)

]
(&R
T
o
[s0]
3
[
1471
w
[at]
=
41
A}
el
—
o
Q
=
!

Tris has a knoo< effect inw June 2021, the resiat

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2021 30 June 2021

(as stated) (restated)

Group L Fo00 £000 £'000
Retzned eaniings (123,920} (4764) [128.684)
Creditors amaourms faling due witnis one yesr (207,318} 4,764 {20)2,554)

In prepanng the tax computations for 2022, the Group's tax advizors have noticed a1 overlocked
assumplion in previous years tax conscldation calculations Within the creviocusly unreccegnised deferred “ax
assels helz wiin in the grouo some were avallatile on 2 consolicaed evel 10 Offset the Group's deferred 1ax
lagility Or an ndividual company bazis the deferrsd @ax in previows years Fad been correctly recogrises A
part of these deferred azsets are in relation 1© cask flow hedges halo within the groun which are accourted
for withm otner cormprehensive income The accumuiated impact for the tax charge ' the profit and loss
for 2021 was £15m (12020 £15.3m) the movement of 300x has been reciated throughout the 2021

comparative rumibers.

A zumimrary of the .mipact of the correcion s provided oelow
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) {restated)

Group S - E'000 £'000 £'000

Reta ned earnings 41,185 (15,289 25,886
—asn flow hedge reserve 63837 (2.875) 53,062

Deferrad 15x prowsicns {36,484) 19,174 117.310)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) {restated}
GrOUE £'000 £'000 £'000

Retarmed aarings 1123.920) (15,093) 139.013)
Cash flow nedge raserve 17098 {Z 119} 14,979
Daterred tax provisions {38,145) 17212 (20,933}

Summary of prior period adjustments:

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) (restated)

S ) £'000 £'000 o EODU _

1 e, o g s o3 . e M.M(B‘Bzg) MaE;SL%
Cooswill LH85988 {34 517) 549471
[eptors 842,548 (2,724) 839.825
Fixed assets 1,316,655 30,512 1377167
seferred tax grovisions (36,484) 19,174 (17,310}
Cash fiow hedage rese-ve 63,837 (3,875) 58,962
Creditors arnounts fallirg due within one year {232,813) 5,259 (227,554)
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 10 June 2021
{as stated) (restated)

Group . £'000 E'000 £000
Retained earnings (1239200 (12,129 (136,049)
Goadwill 602,711 (36,011} 566,700
Detters 600,726 (2.724) 588,002
Fixed assets 1,551,170 30,512 1581682
Deaferred tax provisions {38.145) 17,212 (20,833)
Cash Low hedge reserye 17.098 (2.119) 14,975

Creditars. amounts falling due within cne vear (207 318) 5,259 (202,059)
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BF o e s

a) Reserve Power acquisition

On 2 July 2821, the Greup acoured 9
for cansiceraton of 218,

Tre fo‘.icvwng tables summarise the
and the iiabilites assumed at the a

Consideration

Total cnns:deratnon

<

reSerVe DOwWer s e

npald oy the

rough the purchase of 100%

Ciroup, e far value of the

of the skare capita

assels acgured

£000

T P S

l

_,
o}
o

Detans of the fair vatee of the

Fixed asse

Trade and other rece
Prapaymenrs

Cazh anc cast esdivaents
Tradle and other cremtors

| 03173

Net assets acqulred

et assets acg

Total consideration

Gt Erbeias ek Batr P I I TP PRSI

dired and goodwiil ansmg arg as foiows

Book value
£000

Adjustments
£000

80 788 {28,55%]
294 -

635 -
7.858 -
{2,206} -
(58.816) -
- 28 553 o

Brmraes crean b eaarenenn wae

(28,553)

Fair vatue
52,035
294
535
7858
{2 206}

£000

(58,8186}

oodwill resuitng fror the bu

Tre conscidated statement oF carmg
orofit a‘ter tax of £686.000

rehen

n respect of this acqguisition.

sve rcome for the year inc udes t
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b} Doveryard Limited acquisition
On 22 Cctober 2021, the Croup acquirea Doveryard Limited and its subsidiary through the purcnase ©
100% of the share capital for consideration of £15,414,000.

The following tables summarise the consigeration paid by the Group, the farr value of assets acquired and
Hapilities assurmed at the scquisiion date.

Consideration £000

8 6t A S S £ i A 33 & DT T T LT N 3 A A T X 00 R B EX BT B DR 618 QB RN PR EEY FEO 6 Bk ¢ vEA K 5 0AY S ik mmmee S h PSS S SR R R SR AT

Cash S 12.377
P*'EF tl, =1tf! Jtabm /515 - 1037
Total conslderatlon 13,414

Dezails cf the fair value of the net assets acquired and goodwill arising are as follows’

Book Adjustments Fair
values value
e E'OOO _£'000 £000

Fixed assets 569 - 569

Trade anc other recevacles 57 52
Prepayments and acorued income 193 - 153
Trade ang other ¢ (46/) - (467)

15067
Total consideration 13 414

Gaoodwil, resulting from the busiress combination was £13,067000 and has an estimated useful life of 25

=i}

years, reflacting the lifespan ©° tne assets acquired

he conszidated statement of compranersive income for the year includes £nil of revenue ard a loss
= 123,000 in resgect of this acauwisition.

a
&
@
o~
A1)
e
o)
=
rm




Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

¢) Dulacca acquisition
On 27 August 2021, trne Group acquired Duolacca WF Holdoo 2TY Lia and its three subsidianies trrough the
purchase of 150%

of the share canal o

rconsiceranor of £115 680,000

v the Group, tne “ar va.

weraton pad o

ue of the aszels

acauziton date A lst of the enut es acguired Inciuded in note 29,

Consideration AU D'OGO Exchange Rate E'Q00

Dlrectf.-; atiricutable Costs 1126 18904 595
Total conmderatlon ‘éiéwssks‘MMMWNWNMMUWMMMWww B vuulls 680 "

Cetals of the fair value of the net assets acquired anu intangible aris ng are as follows,

Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments Fair

values value values value

AUD’OOO AUD'000 AUD'OOD £°000 £'000 £°000

Trade ard other recenables 10,131 - 10,131 5,357 - 5,357

Cash and cash equnalants 03,072 - 103,072 54525 - 54525

f1“9';2) - (10 952) {5,793) - [:) 793)

209 884 - 209,884 111026 - 111 026

“ ' 4554

’ o 115680

as an estimatec useful ife of 30 vears,

-

comprenensye noome for the year nc.Lges 2k of roverus and a 10355 affer

Tre consolda
rax of »227.”}9 Ig! vespect of this acguis yor




d
44

3]

~

!\)

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 20

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

d} Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition
On 31 January 2021, tne Group acquired Zestec Asset Mangerrent Limmited a project sources for roofton
solar, tnrough the purchase of 100% of the shars capital ‘or consideration of £4,765.000

he foliowing tables summarise the contideration paid by the Grouwp, the fair value of asses acquired. and
labilizies assumed at the acguisition date

Conslderatlon
,u,’xl’l
Ceforred consclorstion -

Cirectly atributatles costs 1,083

Total consideration 4,765
Cetalls of the fair vaiue of the net assets acquired and gooawill ansirg are as follows.

Book Adjustments Fair

values value

S ’ £000 £'000 £000
Fixea assets 156 - 156

g

Trade and othar credivors (574) - (574}
Trade and cther rece vables 400 - 400
Cash and cash eguivalents 1,019 - 1,019

Giher loans \46 - (46)

Net assets acqulred o 955 - 955
Gour“m it 3 81’?

Total consideration - 7 4,755

Coodwil resulting from the business combination was £3,810.000 and has an estimated use™ul life of 10
vears, refiecting the estimated lifespan of the assets acguired

The corsolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year includes £198,000 of revenue and a loss
before tex of £434 000 i respect of this acguaisition.
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e) Elivia Homes acquisition
On 22 May 2022, the Group acqgdired =lvia 4oidings
100% of ine snare canita: for consderation of £31.684 000

re ‘cliowng ables sumemarise the cons.derattor: paid oy the Croup, the fair value of assets accuired, and

liakbiliies assamed at the acguisition date. A list of the entities acquired are included i note 29,

v B e v G e m o owr x e e p o atitas 3 f wa Yw W empaRa

Cetais of tre fair value of the net assets acguired and gocdwili ansing are as fallows

Book Adjustments
values

go00  £000

418 -

Fixers assels

Irtangisle asscts 11,767 -
Swack 63,936 -
Trade and oiber debtors 2505 -
Cast: and Casn equivaients 11,603 -

orsals and deferred incorme (420} -
Frovizicns {(930) -

Deferred tax 65,000 (1400;
(69,453) -

Net assets acquired

Goodwiil

Total consideration

31553 (14000

Fair
value
£000
11,767

69,939
2.609
11,693

4,600
(69,453)

30433

551
31,684

Goodwill resuivng from the business comninagton was £1551.C06 and has an esiimated us

The consclidaed staterm

€ g
profit pefore tax of £2,502,G04 i respect of s acauisiton
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
R O T T R R T I R

Our reported results are prepared in accordance with United Kngdom Accountng Standards, inclucing
Financial Reporting Standarc 102, as detaled in the Fimancial Statermerts starting on page 35 of the Anaual

Report In meastring our performance, the financiai measares that we use include those that have been

derwved frorr cur reported rosults in arder 16 eliminate factors that distort year-on-year comparisors [nese
are considerad non-GAAP financial measures
Net debt

We provide ner 2ect -n addiion o cash and gross
< cornputed as fol.ows

ebt ac @ way of assessng our overall casn pesition and it

(S8

2022
Note £'000

S £ Gt L I T L T P T e

Bank ioans ara ovendrafts 5 1,044,218

Other loans

Gross debt

871,918
11 (256,415} (172478}

ﬁét det;tl“ 793,167 699,440

toanicandinh

Cash




4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

EBITDA

Earmings before imterest, tex, cepreciaticn and amortisat on {("ERITOAT is calculated by adjusting oroht after
tax for interest, tax, deoreciation and amortisation, 1M addbior o income snd expenses that oo rotrelas to
the day to day operaticrs of the Group. We provice 23 TDA in addition 0 orofl after tax as it alows us 1o

E

assess our perfermance witnout tre effecis of firancing anc capial expenditures.
Tre fciowing table details the adjusiments made 1o the reported resuits

(restaed)
2022 2021

Note £'000 £000

GEh g g Henncanisinssrene aan - P kb b moe e o 7T MHAR S hwns s mmer  f L EYYRAAGAIERE R aapeanaee ¥ % LA RERS YA RS mananese b ¢ 007 EES T TR b s <1

Proﬁtl(loss) for the hnanual year 31310 (31,012)
Ado

sl

37,849 37704
7913 -
101,802 84,697
U payable and sirmiar experses £ 33.554 36,067
Excepuonal items 1105
Tax 7 165,294 $,349

Aracrisauon of ntanghle assets

oo

Irnpairrant of intargbie assets

(xS

Depreciat or of tang nie asses

Interess

Tics o other fxed astet irvestments 5,249} {449)
Srare of operaing profitn joint veriure - {1,755
Profr on csersa of subsidianes (29,532) [28,568)
Interast recevable and simias noorme & (130} 1997)

EBITDA - 194,916 104035

Note 26 details the prior per od adjustnearts
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b N O

Detalls of the subsiciary undertakings are a3 follows

LR R4 e U S

Abbots Ripton Sclar =re

rg; ‘-()U\FQLIIT(&G
Adaunda o SPV 1 Limited”

Agnsol-2 SARLT

Al Newworks Lirmited™

Adpoints Fibre Limiteg®”

Adcnencarroch Erergy Limited®
Auguririe Land Cormpany Limited™”
Averiue Solar Farm Limited”™
Banbury Power Limited™
Batsolare 5 SARL?

Bausoiaire 7 SARLY

Beetiey tnergy Limited”
Beighton Erergy Lirniied’
Beinnewn Wind Farrm Lid”
Belhouse Energy Limited”

B.rch Estate So.ar Limited™

Blaby Solar Farm Linited”™

BNRG IOW Lirnited™”

Bolarm Energy Limited™
Boomerarg Energy Lirnited
Boreas Energy Limited™

Bratton Fleming Limited™

Breck Sousr Limited™

Bryn Yr Gdyn Solar Developments Holdings
Lirmited™

Eryr Yr Odyn Sclar Developmeris Limited™
Bury Power Limited™

Cadoxton Reserve Power Lirmited™

Caicias Ernergy Lirmited™

Cark Limited®

Country of Class of
incorporation  shares
UF:M w Srearatane’ s E)rdmary .
UK Ordinary
France Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Qrdinary
UK Ordinary
¢ Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
freland Ordinary

Holding
100%

T S o B T ETTLEE 0T A X e R e

100%
1007%
100%
100%

100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
10C%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Principal
activity

Hotding compary
Energy generation
Energy generation

Holding company

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Dormant company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation

Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation
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Class of

Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Grdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Qrdinary
Ordinary

Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
QOrdinary
Ordinary

Country of

?Jame/ e incorporation shares
“zswell Solar Farm Limitas™ UK
Caihkn Erergy Lirmteg®™ UK
Causigey Limiteg™ UK
Cedar Erergy and Infrastructure Limiec UK
CEPE Berceronre SARLY Frarce
Certraie Eonenre de Production d energie de .
Grancbois SARLY France
CCPE de a Salesse SARLY France
C EPE de Larombe {Certrale Eglienne de

Prodguction ¢ Erergie de Lacomba) SARLT France
CEPZ de Marsanne AR France
CEPT Haut du Saue’ Frarce
CEPE de la Rachie Gualre Rvieres SARLY France
CERE dius pays de St Seine SARL7 France
CEAssAS France
Chelsan Meadow Energy Limuterd™ UK
Chisbor Soar rarm —oldings Limited™ UK
Chittering Soiar Twe Limied™ UK
Cilgwyyn Energy mited’ UK
Clarn Farm Limmiteo™ UK
Claramond Solar SPY 1 Limited™ UK

C L= Cevelopments Limited” LUK
CLF Ervirogas Lim ted™ UK
CLP Services Limited” LK
CL7E 1991 Lireed” UK
CLPE 1599 Lirmited UK
C_Pz Hodings Lireted LK
C_PE Projecte 1 Uimted UK
CLPE Proects 2 Limted UK
CLPE Prorects 3 Limitec UK
CLPE ROC - 1 oimited” UK
C_PERTC -2 Lmated™ UK
CLPE ROT - 3L mited” UK

Crdinary

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%

100%

100%
160%
100%
100%
100%

160

=

o

100
100%

&

100%
160%

Principal

Holding activity

Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generaticn
Holding company

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generaton
Holding company
Energy generaticn
Dormant company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Dormant company

Provision of Q&M
services

Dormant company
Dormant company
Helding company
Holding company
Hclding company
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Erergy generation

Energy generaticn
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Name

R R T kg kT EWT BB ER Fa koiy kfem e B R & n B

CLPE ROC - ZA Limited”™

CLPE ROC - 4 Limited”

CLPE RDC - 4A Lumited™

Clyre Power Limited”

Coisterworth Energy Limsed™
Conngn Bridge Energy Limitee™
Coteshacn Energy Limated”

Cour Wra Farm (Scotiand) Limied!®”

Craprel Farm Limited™

Crayfern Homes {South Coast) Lirmited ™t

Crayfern Limited

Crayfern Sunley (Sinfold) Limited?s

Crayraarsh Limited™

Cressing Soiar Farm Lmited™
Culvery Power Limited™

Cynon Power Limited™

Daferi Reserve Fower Limied™

Dra.ry Rouse Solar Limiteg™
Deepdale Farm Solar Limited””
Doveryard Limited™

Drapers Farm Limiteg™

Dulacza Energy Project Co PTY Ltd?

Dulacca Energy Project FinCo PTY Ligl?

Dulacca Eneroy Project Moldco Co PTY Lo

Dulzcca WF Holdco PTY {ig??
Dyffryn Brodyn Limted”
Eakring Limitec™

Elecsol Camargue SARL®

Elecsol France 11 SARLY
Eiersol France 15 SARLY
)

Etecsaol France 1

Country of Class of Principal
fncorporation .shareivmww lec!?ig;wat_:tivity

UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 160% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary  100% gﬁ:ﬁfg;iﬁﬁ;
LK Ordinary 100% gsr’:ig?ﬂ;ggs
UK Ordinary  100% E&‘(gﬁ;gﬁ?{fi
UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generatian
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordiniary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 106% Eneray generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy gereration
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Australia Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Australia Ordinary 100% Holding company
Australia Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Australia Ordinary 160% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding cormpany
France Ordinary 10G% Energy generation
France Ordinary 0% Energy generation
France Ordinary 80% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Elecso: Frange 24 SARL*

SARLY

al

ranee 25
Gy 4

CFrance 28 SARL

K

flecso. Frange 4L SARL

Energy 3 France SAS7

Erergy Hosdings 2 Lmited”

o5 Energy Hod ngs 3 Limiteg™

Elios

Elivia

Elivia

Elesia

Elivia

Flivia

v 3

Elwg

Elvia

Eiivia

Elvia

s Energy Holdings amited”

Renewatle Energy Limited™

Seveloprrent T nance Lirmged?

Holdings Limited

—omes (Certral Zimitedgtt
Homes {Dermant 23 Lirted™
—omes (Grange Roaat Liriteg™t
Hormes (Natiey) Lim et
Hames (Souther) Limitad
Homes (Sarkiton) Jirmitea!t
Fomes L mitea’

Nartn L roted?

Dxford Lmited?®

Soatn smitedt

Frarice

France
France

France

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

lE 2022

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Qrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary

Crdinary
Deferred
Preference

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Qrdinary

Crdinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Holdingv )

B T

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1067
100%
160%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal
activi

Energy generation

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Haolding cornpany
Holding company
Holding company
Helding company
Holding company
Halding company
Construction of

domestic buildings

Financ:al services
holding companies

Construction of
domestic buildings

Construction of
domestic buldings

Construction of
domestic buildings
Development of
building projects
Construction of
dornestic buildmgs
Construction of
damestic buildings
Development of
Guilcing projects
Cevelopment of
building projects
Construction of
domestic buildings
Buying and setling of
own real estate
Construction of
dornestic bulidings
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
Name e iNCOrporation shares ~ Holding activity ...
- Comstruction of
Elvia Soutnern Lirmited®: UK Ordinary 100% domestic buldings
Buying and selling of
own real estate
Ehicormoe Limted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Energy project
Erergy Power Resources Cimited™ UK Ordinary 100% Eri:::;per:qi:tt and
services
EPR Ey Lirited” UK Ordinary 100% Emergy generation
EPR Eye Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
LR Glanford Lirmimed™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
EPR Renewsble Erergy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Halding company
EPR Scotland Limied™” UK Qrdinary 100% Ereray generation
EPR Thetford Lirmited™ UK Orchnary 100% Energy generation
E.calyotus tnergy moldings Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Eucalyntus Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Feltweli Energy Limiteg" UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Fern Energy Cour Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 1C0% Holding company
Fern Energy Holdings Limited” UK Ordinary 160% Holding company
Fern Energy Limited" UK QOrdinary 160% Holding company
Fern Energy Wind Hoidings Limitea™ UK Ordinary 160% Holding comparny
Ferrn F-bre Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Healthcare Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Infrastructure Limitea™ UK Ordinary 160% Halding cormpany
Fern Renewable Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary i00% Holding company
Fern Roofiop Solar (&) Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Fern Reoftop Solar (380) UK Ordinary 106% Energy generation
Fern Rooftop Solar (Zestec) Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Trad'ng Develepment Limiteo™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding compary
Fern Trad ng Group Limited UK it 100% Helding company
Fern UK Power Developments Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Fibrophos Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Supply of fertiliser
Four Burraws Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Fraisthorpe Wend Farrm Lirmted” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
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Name

it AR 5

Gariaff Energy Lirm ted®

Giganet Fore Ltd™

Giganet Lir ed™

Clenchamoer W.rd Cnergy Linited ¥
Grange Woad Farrm Limited™
Guardonde SF.z oo

Harbourne Power Lirites”™

Hayrnakesr (Mount Ml Lud™

Hayrmaker (Natewoon) ricidings Lirted”
Haymaker Natewood) "

Fayrmaker (Oak ands) Holdirgs Limited”™
Haymaker {Saklards; Ltd”

Helm Powar 2 Lim.ed™

Helm ~ower o mited™

Higher Knapp Farm Lirited™

Hill Erdd Farrm Lt

Hollarnoor Limied””

Hull Reserve Power Limitea”™

Hursit SPY 1 Lumited™”

mringham Power Lrmited ™

Jurassic Fibre Jotoimgs Limited”

Juratsc Biore Limited

Larigan Povior Liried”
Lenkam Solar Lmted”
Litle T Solar Lim ted”™
Lttleron Sciar Farm Lomited”
Leld Commun catons Jtd™

Lodden Power Umiteg™

e B ERRY R L Y L G EXRRRNSE Y o ke rrERa TN

B RR RSO b

Country of Class of
Incarporation _ shares
UK drélr%ary
UK Ordinary
Uk Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
Potand Orclinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
U Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LiK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Orcmary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
Uk Crdinary
UK Crdinary

160%

10G%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
1607
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1600%
100%
100%
90%

90%

100%
100%

Holding activity

s - L

Principal

Dormant company

Fibre network
production

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy gereration
Cnergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Halthng cormpany
Eriergy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Heiding company
Holding company
Energy gensration
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Energy generaticn
Erergy generaton
Energy generation
Energy gereraton
Helding company

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy gereraticn
Energy gererat:on
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
e e iMCOTPOTAtion shares  Molding activity .. |
Lovedean Llr"’l‘tf o I UK Ord‘nary 100% Energy generation
Luminance Soar Lirrited™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MIZ Sowncns Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Manstzn Tnorme Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
fharch Erergy Lirmeed” Lk Ordirary 100% Energy generation
Marden Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation ‘
Marley Thatch Solar Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Lnergy generation ‘
Meadows Farm Limited”™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation ]
Mebourr Solar Limited™” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation :
Meiton LG Energy Lirmited™ LK Crdinary 100% Helding company
Melion LG Holding Limited™ LK Grdinary 100% Holding comparny :
Melzon LG ROC Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% ﬁ;i:y:s;mg ‘
Melion Renewab'e frergy (Holdings; irmited” UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Meiion Renewabie Erergy Newco L mited”™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Meiton Rernewabie Energy LUK Limiced UK Ordinary 100% Holding compary
Fill Hill Farm Solar Limited™ UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Mirgay Farm Holdirg Zimited™ LK Ordinary 160% Hotding cormpany
MEP Decoy Ltd™ UK Ordinary 100C% Eriergy generation
MEP Strete Ltd™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MS2 Tregassow Limited™ UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
MTS Hatchlands Salar Lid™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Nevern Power 1 mited” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
New Row Farm Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Newiards Sclar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Ninrus Farm Limitee™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Norih Ferrctt Frud Farm Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Northwich Power Lirmied™ UK Ordinary 1002 Energy generaticn
MNotos Energy Lirmted™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Ogrnore Power Lim red™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Oldhail Energy Recovery Holdings Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Che Asafard Healthcare Limite UK Crdinary 89% Eg\fiiis;r;;emces
Cne Hatfield Hospital Limited UK Ordinary 90% Provision of

healthcare services
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Name

IR o i Fansinn B s

Ornie Heaithcare Partners dﬂ.hﬂd

Orta Wedgehil! Solar Holdings Limited™
Crrta Wedgehill Solar Lirnited™

alfreys Barton Lmited™
Farciau Howings Umited™

Parcrau Lirnited™
Park Broadband Limited”

Pearmat Soar 2 [td™

Pichiford {Cordover Arfie d 7 Stockbatcr)
Limitea™

Fitts Farr Lomsited™
Porihos Sowr Limited”
Py Lane Sclar Lid™

ark Hoad Energy Lrmited™

el

zngeford Chertsey Limited™
Fangeford Crrencester Limited”

Rengefcrd Dorking Limitea™
Ranqeford Holdings Lirmced”

Rangeford Pickenng Lirmited™

Fargeford RAP Limited™

Range‘ord Retirernant Livirg Hold'rgs _id
RFerngefory Ltacleford Limiad
Reachas -3 Limited”

Redake Power Limyeq”
Hysion Estate Linmited™
Samrat SARLY

Selny Power Limmiteg™

n

TR Fore Limced®

Country of
mcorporatlon

ctopenye Au R A

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK
France

UK

UK

Class of

sha res

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
COrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary

Ordinary
Crdinary

Crdinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
COrdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Principal
Holding activig_ »
85X Helding company
100% Holding company
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generaticn
160% Holding company
100% Energy generation
100% Fibre ne_twork
production
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Holding comparny
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Ca.re services for a
retirement village
100% Retirerment village
develcpment
N Retirernent village
160% development
100% Retirerment village
development
100% Holding comparny
100 Retirerment village
development
100% Retirerment village
developmerit
100% Holding company
cor Retirement village
16T
development
1007% Energy generat:on
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Fibre network

production

A pamunc e
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Country of Class of Principal
Name i - conivimCOrporation  shares ~ Holding activity e
Singrug Hold-ngs Lim\ted" UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Singrug Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy gereration
S Hils Lare (kagdae] Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Skelorooke znergy Lirr ted™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Slangntergate Limised™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy ganeration
Snetterton Renawable Power Fuels Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% fS:flpEy of biomass
Snetterton Renswable Power Holaings L nvted™ UK Ordmary 100% Holding company
sneterton Renswable Power Limited”” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarfi 1 PO& SARL? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Soiarfi SPCL SARLS France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Soarf P02 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sotarf SPO4 SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sowarf SPOS SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Soiarf SPOR SARL® France Ordinary 100% Enerqy generation
Solarfh SP10 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Southcombe Farm Linmied” UK Crdinary 1007 Energy generation
StAsaph Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Steadfast Parkncuse Solar Limted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sreadfast Rudge Solar Ltd™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sweadfast Smpten 3eunger Solar Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Stellar Power Limted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Storeyhil Energy Limited® UK Ordinary 100% Dorrmant company
sulis Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
summrerston Energy Limited™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Suniey Crayfern Lavant LLPMY UK NA 50% NA
Swish Fisre Contracting Limited® UK Ordinary  100% ;irt;rsuﬁc‘;‘;o”‘
Swish Fibre Limited® UK Ordinary 80% Holding company
Swish Fibre Networks | td® UK Qrdinary 100% girzrc?uzfit(\)fjwork
Swash Fibbre Services Lirnited® UK Ordinary 80% ;\rborjur;etit;\;ork
Swish Fiore Yorkshire® UK Ordinary ~ 100% | Or&network

production

Swish Tradirg Lirnited ™ LUK Ordinary 80% Holding company
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

N_a_m
TEC Salar 102 Linmted™

TGO Solar 107 Limites”

GC Solar 83 L-mited™

The Fern Power Company Limited™
The Hoiies Solar Farm Limited™
Thoresty Estete (Budby) Lirrjied”
Tillingham Power Lirated™

Todkilie Energy Limited™

Tredown Farm Lrnited ™

Turves Solar Limitea™

IUKSE 15 Sotar Lirmied™

Uriteg Mines Friergy omited”

VCSE Lid™

Victona Solar Lirmited ™

viners Energy Lmited
Yirrd Lmited™

Yoltafrance 02 SARL®
Voltafrance G5 SARLY
Voltafrance 13 SARLY
Voltafrance SARLY

Yorboss Lerten™

Vorboss 1S ing®
Wadzwick Gresn Lirmited”

Haoswic Green Iroperty Tervices omited

Warngton Power Lirmied”

Wateroo Solar

ark Holdings Lirmaed”
Warerioo Solar Park Lirted™

Week Farm 2 Lerited”

Westwood Power Limited”

¢

Westwood Solar Limited”

o ASBDPRESE R T PRI T e e £ bBHBHREFIIT T 0 % Tl Lk MERROE B RS

Country of
incorporation

R X L0,

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
814
UK
UK
Uk
LK
UK
UK

UK

UK
UK

LUK

France
Frarice
France
France

LK

USA

UK

LK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK

Class of

shares ..Holding
Ordmar)/ 100%
Ordinary 100%
Crdinary 103%
Crdinary 100%
Ordinary 1002
Ordinary 100%
Crdinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Crdinary 100%
Crdinary 100%
Crdinary 100%
Crdinary 1006%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Crdinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Crdinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Crdmary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Crdinary 100%

Principal
activity

A R RERERAS + T At

Energy gene‘ré}wOH
Energy generaton
Energy generation
Energy generation
Heolding cormpany
Energy generation
Energy ganeration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Holding company

Fiore network
produchon

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Holding company

Fibre network
production

Retirement village
operator

Service charge
adimenistrator

Energy gerncration
Holding company
Energy generaticn
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
Country of Class of Principal
Name . R _ incorpgra)ticmm\;hiresiw’ .. Holding actwlt)!
‘:Vetr;;rdenErergyLlfrlsd OMUK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wharf Power Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
wWhiddon Farm Uimited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Yirinney Hiil erergy Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wincells So.ar Hoidigs Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Wolverhampton Power Lid” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wrydz Croft Wird Farrm Limied'3 LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Bradford Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Bullavington Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
WSE RHuliavingten Limited”™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Park Wall Lirmiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
WSE Pyde Drove Lirmited” UK Crdinary 1060% Energy generation
Zestec Asset Management Limiteg” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Acquired after year end Date
Fern Réof[()p i (E-xBDJ erer i e RS 3 SR AR bR SRR S A s o R £ 091‘08/2022‘ :
Cuckoo irternet Ltd 31/08/2022 !
Yitrifl Digital Lirmited 13/07/2022
450 Limited 2271112022 !

Subsidiares exemnpl frorm audit by wirtue of 34804 of the Companies Act 2006
TSubsdianes exempt from audit by wirtue of $4794 of tne Conpanes Act Z200€
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Dassolved or soid durmg the year and up unhl s:gmng - ) _Date
fcirneun H\Jldmo; . mmteJ T T éO/O7/2021
Ridge wwind Acquisitior Lirmited 20/07/2021
Fern Energy RidgeWing Acquisitions Limited 14/06/2021
Fern Energy RiogeW nd Holdngs Limitea 21/09/2021
fern Energy Fartnerships Holaings Limn:ted 2170812621
Fraisthorpe (Holding) Lirmited 29/03/2022
Y Glahall Erergy Recovery timited 13/09/2022
Cormm2l Lid 15/09/2022
Darlrgton Fomt Haldco Pry Lirmited 08/07/2022
Carlingtor Pont Solar Farm Pty Lirmied 08/07/2022
arlimgten Pont Subkoldco Pty Limited 0B/07/2022
Noraie Power Deveopmert Lirmied 23/12/2021

Vaynnkargas

WNind Farm Oy 231212021

Saunarmaa Whnd Farm Cry 23/12/2021

The regiSiered office of ail cormpeanies lisied above s at 6:h Floor, 32 Rothorr, _onaon, ingland, TN 2HT

excent for those set cut below,

[

ul Grzybowska 2/29 00-131, Warsaw, Pcand

2 Pinsent Masons LLP Capitai Square, 58 Mornson Street, Edinburgh, Scotlana, EHZ BBP
2 1'West Regent Street, Glasgow, G2 TAF

4. zZ2rue Aononse de Newvive, 75017 Pans, France
5 6tr Floor, 2 Grand Canal Sguare, Sublr 2, COZ A342. heans
The Carriage House, Stanen Works, Statior Roaa, Claverdon, Wanw ckshire, United Kingdom CV

Zone industrele de Courtine 215 Rue Du Mourelet 84000 Avignon, Frarce

[v o TN R

13 Zalsbory Place, London, England, WlH 1-]

S The Corporatior Trust Compary, Corporation Trust Cener, 1209 Orange Street, Wamagior 12
nited States

1% 4th Foor Saitire Court, 26 Caste Terrace, Edinburgh, Scotiand, 2HL 22N

I
[N
i
[8]
Q

il Rouse, Mercury

ERWES

01 Coling Streer, Mebourne, Victona, 3000, Austraua

-8 Stratforz 2lace. Lonaorn, Sngland, WiC LAY

ST
o

V35 BPE

Wycambe Lare, Wocborn Green, H gn Wycoroe, Engang, 200 GHH

7
re directors belleve that the carry ng value of tre investmenis 1s sapcorted by ther undernying net assets



5 APPENDIX — SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE (UNAUDITED!)

Fern’s share price has performed in line with targets

Fern Trading Limited 1s an urlsted comoany Every rnonth, our Board of Directors agrees a proe at which it
will be willing 10 1ssue new shares The share price is unaudied,

The figures below include the share price of tne previcus parent (now Fern Trading Group Limited) as well

as this entity

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

19

16
15 MW

14 e
13 e
12
11
1.0

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Performance 15 calculated based on the sale price for Fern's shares at 2 June each year The share pnce s
rot subject to audit by Errst & Young -
Annual diserete performance
Financial Year Dlscrete share prlce perforrnance
June 2021-22 - 9.91%
Ju e 2020-21 - 7 4.57%
June 2L; 9 2u 7 - N S 033%
June 2018- 19 6.23% |
mpz(lﬂ - S e e ,,105%
-fume 2015—17 7 o - - 5. 54/:
sune 2015-16 - o 3.83%
June 2013-14 3.72%
:}une 2012-13 & o - ' ‘ 3.97%
e 201112 | 1.02%

Source Octopus Investrments Limited, 2 June 2022




6 | COMPANY INFORMATION

Directors and advisers

Rogistered office

s

6th Floor, 33 Holcorr,

K3 Wity _ondan, Englend ECIN 2HT
P Barow

[ Arthur (aopointed 1 July 2022) i independent auditoers
" frrst & Young P
Lompany secretary i Sedford House.

Octopus Comeary Secretanal Services Limited 16 Redford Swreel,

Bel*ast BTZ 70T

Forward-locking statements

Tris Annwal Teport cortans certain forwarG-1ooking staternents re

ardd financia performance and future events or developments. These siatemen

knicwledge and ex tions of managerment and are s:bject 1o asumpiors, risks and Lncertantias, some

of which are rela

ted bo factors that are beyerd e control of the Corepany. ACcorangly, no assurance can

be aven that ary particular expectaton will be met and forward-looking staterments regarding past trands or

actvites shoud not be Taken as 5 reproseniaton that sucr rends oF actuities will conirLe i the fLiure Past
perfarmance czn~ot be relied on as a guide to futdre perforrnarce. Notaing in this Annual Renort shaus be

construeq az a oroft forecast




